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NOVVALSKY, BRONSTON & GOThARD 
A Professional Limited Liability Company 

Attorneys at Law 
3500 N. Causeway Boulevard 

Metairie, Louisiana 70002 
Telephone: (504) 832-1984 
Facsimile: (504) 831-0892 

Monica R. Borne 
Suite 1442 EllenAnn G. Sands 

Leon L. Nowalsky 
Benjamin W. Bronston 
Edward P. Gothard 

April 27, 2000 

VIA AIRBORNE EXPRESS 

Florida Public Service Commission O O G S O q  -7-P 
2540 Shumard Oak Drive 
Tallahassee, FL 32399-0850 

Re: Joint Application of World Access, Inc., STI Merger Co., STAR 
Telecommunications, Inc., AS Telecommunications, PT-1 Long 
Distance, Inc., PT-1 Communications, Inc. and CEO 
Communications, Inc. for approval of an Agreement and Plan 
of Merger 

Dear Sir/Madam: 

On behalf of World Access, Inc. ("WAXS"), STI Merger Co., STAR Telecommunications, 
Inc., AS Telecommunications and CEO Communications, Inc., enclosed please find an original 
and six (6) copies of the above referenced Application. 

Please date stamp and return the enclosed extra copy of this letter in the envelope 
provided. 

Should you have any questions concerning this filing, please do not hesitate to call me. 
Thank you for your assistance with this matter. 

Sincerely, 

Enclosures 
'+ ' 
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BEFORE THE PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
" * .. 

APPLICATION FOR APPROVAL 
OF AGREEMENT AND PLAN OF 

WORLD ACCESS, INC., 
STI MERGER CO., STAR 
TELECOMMUNICATIONS, INC., AS 

MERGER BY AND AMONG CASENO. 0005bY- 1 7  

TELECOMMUNICATIONS, PT-1 LONG 
DISTANCE, INC., PT-1 COMMUNICATIONS, INC. 
AND CEO COMMUNICATIONS INC. 

JOINT APPLICATION 

World Access, Inc. ("WAXS"), STAR Telecommunications, Inc. ("STAR"), AS 

Telecommunications ("AS"), PT-1 Long Distance, Inc. ("PLDI"), PT-1 Communications, Inc. 

("PCI") and CEO Communications, Inc. ("CEO"), pursuant to the applicable Statutes of the 

State of Florida and the Commission's Rules and Regulations currently in effect andlor 

subsequently enacted, hereby request Commission approval of an Agreement and Plan 

of Merger' (the "Agreement") whereby STAR will merge with and into STI Merger Co 

('Merger S u b  or the "Surviving Corporation"), a wholly owned subsidiary of WAXS 

(hereinafter, the "Acquisition"). STAR holds a certificate to provide telecommunications 

services in this state. Additionally, the Star Subsidiaries are certificated 

A copy of the Agreement is attached hereto as Exhibit "A," 1 
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in this state. By virtue of the Acquisition, each of the STAR Subsidiaries will also become 

wholly owned subsidiaries of the Surviving Corporation. 

The practical effect of the Acquisition will be that WAXS will acquire all of the issued 

and outstanding shares of STAR common stock for equitable consideration. After the 

transaction, the Surviving Corporation will continue to operate, in all material respects, as 

STAR currently operates. The technical, managerial and financial personnel of WAXS, in 

addition to some current STAR employees, will become the technical, managerial and 

financial personnel of the Surviving Corporation after this t ran~act ion.~ The Surviving 

Corporation will continue to provide service under STAR's present operating authorities, 

certifications and tariffs, to the extent permitted by this Commission. In that regard, the 

parties respectfully request transfer of STAR's certification, tariffs and/or operating 

authority to Merger Sub. 

WAXS and STAR hereby jointly seek Commission approval of the Agreement, the 

practical effect of which will result in a change in ownership of the capital stock of STAR 

Commission approval of the Agreement will be beneficial to the involved companies as well 

as their customers, primarily due to the enhanced overall financial strength of the 

combined companies which will result from the transaction. Approval of the Agreement will 

AS Telecommunications provides telecommunications services pursuant 2 

to authority granted in Docket No. 99-0668-Tl, Order No. PSC 99-1 1691-FOF-TI, 
T93593, dated 1/12/94 . PLDl provides telecommunications services pursuant to 
authority granted in Docket No. 990576-Tl, Order No. 99-1 680-CO-TI, dated 8/30/99. 
PCI provides telecommunications services pursuant to authority granted in Docket No. 
TI-480, Order No. 961012 Certificate No. 4432, dated 8/7/96. CEO Communications, 
Inc. provides telecommunications services pursuant to authority granted in Docket No. 
95-0685-Tl, Certificate No. T-95-367, dated 9/28/95. 

3 

Exhibit "B." 
Resumes of WAXS' current management team are attached hereto as 

Page -2- 



h 

not in any way be detrimental to the public interests of this state. The customers of STAR 

will continue to receive from the Surviving Corporation the same high quality service 

presently rendered to them by STAR, and there will not be any increase in their rates due 

to this transaction. 

In support of this Application, Applicant shows the following: 

1. THE PARTIES 

1. STAR is a publicly held Delaware corporation with principal offices located 

at 223 East De La Guerra, Santa Barbara, California 93101. STAR is a non-dominant 

carrier that provides switch-based and resold domestic and international long distance 

services. 

2. STAR is authorized by the FCC to provide international services as a non- 

dominant carrier and intrastate service, pursuant to certification, registration or tariff 

requirements, or on an unregulated basis, in ten ( I O )  states. STAR and the STAR 

Subsidiaries are certificated carriers in this state. 

3. WAXS is a public company, the common stock of which is publicly traded on 

the NASDAQ National Market, and is a Delaware corporation with principal offices located 

at 945 E. Paces Ferry Road, Suite 2200, Atlanta, Georgia 30326. WAXS is a holding 

company which does not directly offer telecommunications services, but rather owns and 

operates subsidiaries which offer such services. 

4. Merger Sub is a privately held Delaware corporation (which is a wholly owned 

subsidiary of WAXS) that has been formed strictly for purposes of effectuating the 

Acquisition. In connection with the Acquisition, STARwiII merge with and into Merger Sub 
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and Merger Sub will continue to provide service under STARS present operating 

authorities, certifications and tariffs, to the extent permitted by this Commission. 

5. AST is a wholly owned subsidiary of STAR which is incorporated under the 

laws of the state of Arizona and has its principal offices located at 223 East De La Guerra, 

Santa Barbara, CA 931 01. AST is a non-dominant carrier that provides switch-based and 

resold domestic and international long distance services. AST is authorized by the FCC 

to provide international services as a non-dominant carrier and intrastate service, pursuant 

to certification, registration ortariff requirements, or on an unregulated basis, in thirty-eight 

(38) states. 

6. PCI is a wholly owned subsidiary of STAR which is incorporated under the 

laws of the state of New York and has its principal offices located at 30-50 Whitestone 

Expressway, Flushing, NY 11354. PCI is a non-dominant carrier that provides switch- 

based and resold domestic and international long distance services. PCI is authorized by 

the FCC to provide international services as a non-dominant carrier and intrastate service, 

pursuant to certification, registration or tariff requirements, or on an unregulated basis, in 

thirty-six (36) states. 

7 .  PLDl is a wholly owned subsidiary of STAR which is incorporated under the 

laws of the state of Delaware and has its principal offices located at 30-50 Whitestone 

Expressway, Flushing, NY 11354. PLDl is a non-dominant carrier that provides switch- 

based and resold domestic and international long distance services. PLDl is authorized 

by the FCC to provide international services as a non-dominant carrier and intrastate 

service, pursuant to certification, registration or tariff requirements, or on an unregulated 

basis, in thirty-one (31) states 
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8. CEO is a wholly owned subsidiary of STAR which is incorporated under the 

laws of the state of California and has its principal offices located at 223 East de La 

Guerra, Santa Barbara, CA 931 01. CEO is a non-dominant carrier that provides switch- 

based and resold domestic and international long distance services. CEO is authorized 

by the FCC to provide international services as a non-dominant carrier and intrastate 

service, pursuant to certification, registration or tariff requirements, or on an unregulated 

basis, in thirty-five (35) states. 

9. The Acquisition contemplates STAR merging with and into Merger Sub. The 

practical effect of the merger will be the acquisition by WAXS of all of the outstanding and 

issued shares of STARS common stock for equitable consideration. Afterthe transaction, 

the Surviving Corporation will continue to operate, in all material respects, as STAR 

currentlyoperates. The Surviving Corporation will continue to operateasa regulated entity 

pursuant to STAR'S present certifications, registrations, tariff requirements and rate 

structures, or on an unregulated basis (where applicable), pursuant to applicable law and 

to the extent permitted by this Commission. Furthermore, following the transaction, the 

STAR Subsidiaries will continue to operate, in all material respects, as they presently 

operate. 

In addition to STAR becoming, in effect, a wholly-owned subsidiary of WAXS as a 

result of the Acquisition, the STAR Subsidiaries will also become wholly owned subsidiaries 

of the Surviving Corporation. 
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II. DESIGNATED CONTACT 

10. The designated contact for questions concerning this Application is: 

EllenAnn G. Sands 
Nowalsky, Bronston & Gothard, APLLC 
3500 North Causeway Boulevard 
Suite 1442 
Metairie, Louisiana 70002 
Telephone: (504) 832-1 984 
Facsimile: (504) 831 -0892 

with copies to: 

George Rebensdorf 
The Rebensdorf Group, Inc. 
3021 1 Avenida Banderas, Suite 200 
Rancho Santa Margarita, CA 92688 
Telephone: (949) 766-6710 
Facsimile: (949) 766-671 1 

Richard J. Welch 
Riordan & McKinzie 
Twenty-Ninth Floor 
300 South Grand Avenue 
Los Angeles, California 90071 
Telephone: (21 3) 229-851 0 
Facsimile: (21 3) 229-8550 

Richard Heidecke 
World Access, Inc. 
1919 S. Highland, Suite 129-D 
Lombard, Illinois 60148 
Telephone: (630) 268-6620 
Facsimile: (630) 268-6898 

H. Franklin Layson 
Long, Aldridge & Norman, LLP 
303 Peachtree Street, Suite 5300 
Atlanta, Georgia 30308 
Telephone: (404) 527-4000 
Facsimile: (404) 527-4198 
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111. REQUEST FOR PERMISSION TO CONSUMMATE THE AGREEMENT 

11. At the present time, WAXS is a non-regulated entity operating as a holding 

company. STAR is a regulated entity providing intrastate interexchange and alternative 

operator services, as well as interstate interexchange and international services, to its 

customers. By virtue of this transaction, and the resulting association of the two (2) 

corporate entities, both companies will realize economic, marketing and administrative 

efficiencies. Copies of financial statements for both STAR and WAXS are attached to 

this Application, in globo, as Exhibit "C". 

12. The parties submit that the Acquisition will accomplish the following: 

(a) WAXS will acquire all of the issued and outstanding shares of the 
stock of STAR by virtue of the merger of STAR with and into Merger 
Sub; 

As a result of the transaction, STAR will, in effect, become a wholly 
owned subsidiary of WAXS; and 

The Surviving Corporation shall continue to operate as a regulated 
entity pursuant to STARS present certifications, registrations, tariff 
requirements and rate structures, or on an unregulated basis, as 
provided by and pursuant to applicable law and to the extent 
permitted by this Commission. 

In addition to STAR becoming, in effect, a wholly-owned subsidiary of 
WAXS as a result of the Acquisition, the STAR Subsidiaries will 
become wholly owned subsidiaries of the Surviving Corporation. To 
the extent required by this Commission, the parties respectfully 
request Commission approval for the STAR Subsidiaries to become 
wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Surviving Corporation in connection 
with the Acquisition. To assist the Commission in understanding the 
present and proposed corporate organization of the parties to the 
Acquisition, submitted herewith as Exhibit D are pre and post- 
Acquisition flow charts reflecting the effect of the Acquisition on all 
affected certificated entities. 

(b) 

(c) 

(d) 
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13. It is respectfully represented herein that the transfer of stock as outlined 

above will be made for fair and equitable consideration to the stockholders of STAR, 

The technical, managerial and financial personnel of WAXS, in addition to 

some current STAR employees, will become the technical, managerial and financial 

personnel of the Surviving Corporation after the transaction, and the Surviving 

Corporation will continue to provide service to the customers of STAR with the same 

high level of expertise currently in place. 

14. 

15. The practical effect of the transaction is a change in ownership of the 

common stock of STAR. The Surviving Corporation will continue to operate in all 

material respects as STAR presently operates. The Acquisition will be seamless and 

transparent to the customers of STAR. As a result, the customers of STAR will in no 

way be adversely impacted by the Acquisition 

IV. PUBLIC INTEREST CONSIDERATIONS 

16. Critical to the Acquisition is the need to ensure the continuation of high 

quality service to all customers currently served by STAR. The Acquisition will serve the 

public interest for the following reasons: 

(a) First, it will enhance the operating efficiencies, including market 
efficiencies, of the combined companies. 

Second, itwill increase the appeal to present and potential customers 
as communications services will be provided in a more cost-effective 
manner due to higher buying power and lower transport costs. 

Finally, it will provide improved access to capital and the ability to 
provide services to customers at competitive prices. 

(b) 

(c) 
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17. Accordingly, the Acquisition will serve to create a heightened level of 

operating efficiency which generally will serve to enhance the overall capacity of the 

combined companies to compete in the marketplace and to provide 

telecommunications services for customers in this state at competitive rates 

V. CONCLUSION 

18. WHEREFORE, for the reasons stated herein, Applicants respectfully request 

that the Commission approve the Agreement and authorize consummation of the 

Acquisition as described above, including the transfer of STARS tariffs, certification 

andlor operating authority to the Surviving Corporation. 

DATED this 27th day of April, 2000 

Respectfu I ly submitted, 

EllenAnn G. Sands 
Nowalsky, Bronston & Gothard, APLLC 
3500 North Causeway Boulevard, Suite 1442 
Metairie, Louisiana 70002 
Telephone: (504) 832-1 984 
Counsel for World Access, Inc. and Star 
Telecommunications, Inc. 
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In the District of Columbia 

VERIFICATION 

I. Walter Burmeister, am the President of Word Access, Inc. and am 

authorized to  make this verification on its behalf. The statements made in the 

foregoing Application are true of my own knowledge, except as to those matters 

which are therein stated on information and belief, and as to  those matters I believe 

them to be true. 

Y Title: President 

Sworn to and subscribed before me, Notary Public, in and for the District of 
Columbia, t h i s 4  day of April, 2000. 

-% Noterv Public 
NOTARY PUBLIC DISTRICT 
My Commirrion Expire My Commission expires: 



VERIFICATION 

I, Mary Casey, am the President andlor the Chief Executive Officer of STAR 

Telecommunications, Inc., AS Telecommunications, PT-1 Communications, Inc., PT-1 

Long Distance, Inc. and CEO Communications, Inc. As such, I am authorized to make 

this verification on behalf of each of the foregoing companies. The statements made in 

the foregoing Application are true of my own knowledge, except as to those matters 

which are therein stated on information and belief, and as to those matters I believe 

them to be true. 

By: NhA li.ape-7 
Name: Mary Casey [ 
Title: President (andlor Chief Exec tive Officer) 

Sworn to and subscribed before me, Notary Public, in and for the State and 

+ County named above, this & day of April, 2000 

MY commission expires: D c+ p;Li' 
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AGREEMENT AND PLAN OF MERGER 

THIS AGREEMENT AND PLAN OF MERGER, dated as of February 1 1 .  2000 (this 
"Aereement"). is made and entered into among WORLD ACCESS. MC.. a Delaware corporation ("u). STI Merger Co.. a Delaware corporation and wholly-owned subsidiav of WAXS 
("Merger S u b ) ,  and STAR TELECOMMUNICATIONS. MC., a Delaware corporation ("STAR"). 

W I T N E S S  E T  H: 

WHEREAS, the Boards of Directors of STAR and WAXS deem it advisable and in the best 
interests of each corporation and its respective stockholders that STAR and WAXS engage in a 
business combination in order to advance the long-term strategic business interests of STAR and 
WAXS; 

WHEREAS, the combination of STAR and WAXS shall be effected by the terms of this 
Agreement through a merger as outlined below (the "Merger"); 

WHEREAS, in furtherance thereof, the respective Boards of Directors of STAR, Merger Sub 
and WAXS have approved the Merger, upon the terms and subject to the conditions set forth in this 
Agreement. pursuant to which each share of common stock. par value %O.OOl per share. of STAR 
("STAR Common Stock") issued and outstanding immediately prior to the Effective Time (as 
defined in Section 1.3) will be converted into the right to receive the consideration set forth in 
Section 1.6; 

WREREAS, for federal income tax purposes, it is intended that the Merger shall qualify as 
a reorganization within the meaning of Section 368(a) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986. as 
amended (the "w), and the regulations promulgated thereunder; and 

WHEREAS, simultaneously with the execution and delively ofthis Agreement, WAXS and 
Christopher E. Edgecomb and Samer Tawfik (the "PrinciDal Stockholders") are entering into an 
agreement (the "Votine and Stock Transfer Restriction Aereement") pursuant to which each 
Principal Stockholder will agree to, among other things. vote in favor of the Merger and certain 
restrictions on the transfer of the consideration received in the Merger. 

NOW. THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the respective representations. 
warranties. covenants and agreements set forth in this Agreement. and intending to be legally bound 
hereby. the parties hereto agree as follows: 
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ARTICLE I 

THE MERGER 

A 

1.1 The Merger. Upon the terms and subject to the conditions set forth in this Ag-eement. 
and in accordance with the General Corporation Law ofthe State of Delaware (the "m'). STAR 
shall be merged ui th  and into Merger Sub at the Effective Time (as defined below). Following the 
Merger. the separate corporate existence of STAR shall cease and Merger Sub shall continue as the 
surviving corporation (the "Surviving Comoration"). 

1.2 m. Subject to the satisfaction or waiver of the conditions set forth in Article 
VI. the closing of the Merger and the transactions contemplated by this Agreement (the "Closing") 
will take place on the second business day following the satisfaction or waiver of such conditions. 
unless another time or date is agreed to in writing by the parties hereto (the date of the Closing being 
referred to herein as the "Closine Date"). The Closing shall be held at the offices of Long Aldridge 
& Norman LLP. 303 Peachtree Street, Suite 5300, Atlanta, Georgia 30303, unless another place is 
agreed to by the parties hereto. 

1.3 Effective Time. On the Closing Date the parties shall (i) file a certificate of merger 
(the "Certificate of Merger") in such form as is required by. and executed in accordance with. the 
relevant provisions of the DGCL and (ii) make all other filings or recordings required under the 
DGCL in connection with the Merger. The Merger shall become effective at such time as the 
Certificate of Merger is duly filed with the Delaware Secretary of State or at such subsequent time 
as WAXS and STAR shall agree and as shall be specified in the Certificate of Merger (the date and 
time the Merger becomes effective being the "Effective Time"). 

1.4 Effects of the Mereer. At and after the Effective Time, the Merger will have the 
effects set forth in the DGCL. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, and subject thereto, 
at the Effective Time all the property, rights. privileges, powers, licenses, authorizations and 
franchises of Merger Sub and STAR shall be vested in the Surviving Corporation, and all debts, 
liabilities and duties of Merger Sub and STAR shall become the debts, liabilities and duties of the 
Surviving Corporation. 

1.5 Certificate of IncomoratiodBvlaws. The certificate of incorporation and bylaws of 
Merger Sub, as in effect immediately prior to the Effective Time, shall be the certificate of 
incorporation and bylaws of the Surviving Corporation. until thereafter changed or amended as 
provided therein or by applicable law. 

1.6 Conversion of Securities. At the Effective Time, by virtue ofthe Merger and without 
any action on the part of WAXS, Merger Sub. STAR or the holders of any of the following 
securities: 

(a) [INTENTIONALLY OMITTED.] 
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(b) Each share of STAR Common Stock issued and outstandins and directly or 
indirectly owned or held by STAR or a Subsidiary thereof at the Effective Time shall. by virtue of 
the Merger. cease to be outstanding and shall be canceled and retired and no capital stock of WAXS 
or'other consideration shall be delivered in exchange therefor. 

(c) Subject to Section 2.4. each share of STAR Common Stock issued and 
outstanding immediately prior to the Effective Time (other than the Dissenter's Shares (as detined 
in Section 8.12)) shall be converted into the right to receive. at the election of WAXS by written 
notice to STAR prior to the Closing, (i) the number of shares of WAXS Common Stock obtained 
by solving for " X "  in the following formula (the "Exchange Ratio"): 

X = 7.81 + 2 
20 

or (i i)  such number of shares of WAXS Common Stock as shall equal sixty percent (60%) of the 
Exchange Ratio and an amount in cash equal to forty percent (40%) ofthe sum of $7.81 plus"Z' (as 
defined below); provided, however. that WAXS and STAR expressly agree that, notwithstanding 
anything in this Agreement to the contrary, in order to ensure that the Merger satisfies the continuity 
of interest requirement under Treasury Regulation Section 1.368-l(e), that in no event shall WAXS 
issue cash for more than forty-five percent (45%) ofthe outstanding shares of STAR Common Stock, 
including for purposes of this calculation cash paid for fractional shares pursuant to Section 2.4 and 
cash paid for Dissenters' Shares. 

For purposes of this Section 1.6, " Z  shall equal the PT-1 Excess Proceeds (as defined in 
Section 8.12) divided by 62,856,702. All shares of STAR Common Stock, at the Effective Time. 
shall no longer be outstanding and shall automatically be canceled and retired and each holder of a 
certificate representing any such shares (a "Certificate") shall cease to have any rights with respect 
thereto. except as set forth in this Section 1.6(c). Section 2.4 or at law. The shares of WAXS 
Common Stock issued pursuant to this Section 1.6(c) together with any cash in lieu of fractional 
shares paid.pursuant to Section 2.4 shall be referred to herein as the "Mercer Consideration." 

1.7 STAR Stock ODtions. 

(a) At the Effective Time. by virtue of the Merger and without any further action 
on the part of STAR, WAXS, Merger Sub or the holder of any outstanding option, warrant or other 
right to acquire STAR capital stock (a "STAR Stock Ootion"), each STAR Stock Option will be 
automatically converted into a WAXS Stock Option (as defined in Section 3.l(b)) to purchase shares 
of WAXS Common Stock in an amount equal to the number of shares of STAR Common Stock 
covered under such STAR Stock Option multiplied by the Exchange Ratio (rounded to the nearest 
whole number of shares of WAXS Common Stock) at a price per share of WAXS Common Stock 
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equal to the per share option exercise price specified in the STAR Stock Option divided by the 
Exchange Ratio (rounded to the nearest whole cent). Each such WAXS Stock Option shall contain 
terms and provisions which are substantially similar to those terms. conditions and provisions 
governing the original STAR Stock Option. except that references to STAR in such STAR Stock 
Option will be deemed to refer to WAXS and the date of grant of the STAR Stock Option shall be 
deemed to be the date of grant of such WAXS Stock Option. At the Effective Time. for purposes 
of interpretation of such new WAXS Stock Option. (i) all references in any stock option plan 'of 
STAR shall be deemed to refer to WAXS; (ii) any stock option plan of STAR which governs the 
STAR Stock Option shall continue to govern the WAXS Stock Option substituted therefor: and (i i i )  
WAXS shall. as soon as practicable after the Effective Time. issue to each holder ofan outstanding 
STAR Stock Option a document evidencing the foregoing issued and substituted WAXS Stock 
Option by WAXS. It is the intention of the parties: (1) that, subject to applicable law, STAR Stock 
Options assumed by WAXS qualify, following the Effective Time. as incentive stock options. as 
defined in Section 422 of the Code. to the extent that STAR Stock Options qualified as incentive 
stock options prior to the Effective Time, (2) that each holder of a STAR Stock Option shall receive 
a new WAXS Stock Option which preserves (but does not increase) the excess of the fair market 
value ofthe shares subject to such STAR Stock Option immediately before the Effective Time over 
the aggregate option price of such shares immediately before the Effective Time, if any such excess 
then exists. (3) that the terms, conditions. restrictions and provisions of the WAXS Stock Option be 
substantially similar to the terms, conditions, restrictions and provisions of the STAR Stock Option, 
and (4) any terms conditions, restrictions or provisions of a STAR Stock Option applicable to a 
number of shares rather than a percentage or fraction of shares should be appropriately adjusted 
based upon the Exchange Ratio. Without the prior written consent of WAXS (which may be 
withheld in its discretion), no new options shall be issued by STAR on or after the date hereof. 
including, without limitation, under any stock option plan currently maintained by STAR. 

(b) With respect to each STAR Stock Option converted into a WAXS Stock 
Option pursuant to Section 1.7(a), and with respect to the shares of WAXS Common Stock 
underlying such option. WAXS shall file and keep current all requisite registration statements, on 
Form S-8 or other appropriate form, for as long as such options remain outstanding, which 
registration statement shall include a prospectus meeting the requirements of General Instruction C 
to Form S-8 with respect to affdiates of STAR. subject at all times to compliance with all applicable 
federal and state securities laws. 

(c) After the date of this Agreement. STAR agrees that it will not grant any 
restricted stock, stock appreciation rights or limited stock appreciation rights and also agrees that it 
will not permit cash payments to holders of STAR Stock Options in lieu of the substitution therefor 
of WAXS Stock Options, as described in this Section 1.7. 

1.8 Certain Adiustments. If between the date hereof and the Effective Time, the 
outstanding WAXS Common Stock or STAR Common Stock shall have been changed into a 
different number of shares or different class by reason of any reclassification, recapitalization. stock 
split, split-up. combination. exchange of shares or similar capital stock event or,a stock dividend or 
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dividend payable in any other securities shall be declared k i t h  a record date within such period. or 
any similar event shall have occurred. the Exchange Ratio shall be appropriately adjusted to provide 
to the holders of STAR Common Stock and the holders of STAR Stock Options the same economic 
effect as contemplated by this Agreement prior to such event. 

ARTICLE 11 

EXCHANGE OF CERTIFICATES 

2.1 Exchange Fund. At least five (5) days prior to the mailing of the Joint Proxy 
Statement'Prospectus (as defined in Section 5.1), WAXS shall appoint a commercial bank or trust 
company reasonably acceptable to STAR to act as exchange agent hereunder (the "Exchanee Arent") 
for the purpose of exchanging Certificates for the Merger Consideration. Immediately prior to the 
Effective Time. WAXS shall deposit with the Exchange Agent, in trust for the benefit of holders of 
shares of STAR Common Stock, cash payable and certificates representing the WAXS Common 
Stock issuable pursuant to Section 1.6 in exchange for outstanding shares of STAR Common Stock. 
WAXS agrees to deposit with the Exchange Agent from time to time as needed, cash sufficient to 
pay cash in lieu of fractional shares pursuant to Section 2.4 and any dividend sand other distributions 
pursuant to Section 2.3. Any cash and certificates of WAXS Common Stock deposited with the 
Exchange Agent shall hereinafter be referred to as the "Exchanee Fund". 

2.2 Exchanee Procedures. As soon as reasonably practicable after the Effective Time, 
WAXS shall cause the Exchange Agent to mail to each holder of a Certificate (other than to holders 
of Dissenter's Shares) (i) a letter of transmittal which shall advise such holder of the effectiveness 
of the Merger and specify that delivery shall be effected, and risk of loss and title to the Certificates 
shall pass. only upon delivery of the Certificates to the Exchange Agent, and which letter shall be 
in customary form and have such other provisions as WAXS may reasonably specify and 
(ii)  instructions for effecting the surrender of such Certificates in exchange for the applicable Merger 
Consideration. Upon surrender of a Certificate to the Exchange Agent together with such letter of 
transmittaLduly executed and completed in accordance with the instructions thereto, and such other 
documents as may reasonably be required by the Exchange Agent, the holder of such Certificate shall 
be entitled to receive in exchange therefor promptly (A) one or more shares of WAXS Common 
Stock (which shall be in uncertificated book entry form unless a physical certificate is requested) 
representing, in the aggregate, the whole number of shares that such holder has the right to receive 
pursuant to Section 1.6 (after taking into account all shares of STAR Common Stock then held by 
such holder). and (B) a check in the amount equal to the cash that such holder has the right to receive 
pursuant to the provisions of Section 1.6(c). if any, and this Article 11, including cash in lieu of any 
additional shares of WAXS Common Stock pursuant to Section 2.4 and dividends and other 
distributions pursuant to Section 2.3. No interest will be paid or will accrue on any cash payable 
pursuant to 1.6(c). Section 2.3 or Section 2.4. In the event of transfer of ownership of STAR 
Common Stock which is not registered in the transfer records of STAR, one or more shares of 
WAXS Common Stock evidencing. in the aggregate, the proper number of shares of WAXS 
Common Stock. a check in the proper amount of cash in lieu of any additional shares of WAXS 
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Common Stock pursuant to Section 2.4. a check in the proper amount of cash pursuant to Section 
1.6(c) and any dividends or other distributions to which such holder is entitled pursuant to Section 
2.3. may be issued with respect to such STAR Common Stock to such a transferee if the Certificate 
representing such shares of STAR Common Stock is presented to the Exchange Agent. accompanied 
by all documents required to evidence and effect such transfer and to evidence that any applicable 
stock transfer taxes have been paid. 

2.3  Distributions with Resuect to Unexchaneed Certificates. No dividends or other 
distributions declared or made with respect to shares of WAXS Common Stock with a record date 
after the Effective Time shall be paid to the holder of any unexchanged Certificate with respect to 
the shares of WAXS Common Stock that such holder would be entitled to receive upon surrender 
of such Certificate and no cash payment in lieu of fractional shares of WAXS Common Stock shall 
be paid to any such holder pursuant to Section 2.4 until such holder shall surrender such Certificate 
in accordance with Section 2.2. Subject to the effect of applicable laws, following surrender of any 
such Certificate. there shall be paid to such holder of shares of WAXS Common Stock issuable in 
exchange therefor. without interest, (a) promptly after the time of such surrender, the amount of any 
cash payable in lieu of fractional shares of WAXS Common Stock to which such holder is entitled 
pursuant to Section 2.4 and the amount of dividends or other distributions with a record date after 
the Effective Time theretofore paid with respect to such wholesharesof WAXS Common Stock, and 
(b) at the appropriate payment date, the amount ofdividends or other distributions with a record date 
after the Effective Time but prior to such surrender and a payment date subsequent to such surrender 
payable with respect to such shares of WAXS Common Stock. 

2.4 No Fractional Shares of WAXS Common Stock. 

(a) No certificates or scrip or shares of WAXS Common Stock representing 
fractional shares of WAXS Common Stock or book-entry credit of the same shall be issued upon 
the surrender for exchange of Certificates and such fractional share interests will not entitle the 
owner thereof to vote or to have any rights of a stockholder of or a holder of shares of WAXS 
Common Stock. 

(b) Notwithstanding any other provision ofthis Agreement, each holder ofshares 
of STAR Common Stock exchanged pursuant to the Merger who would otherwise have been entitled 
to receive a fraction of a share of WAXS Common Stock (after taking into account all Certificates 
delivered by such holder) shall receive, in lieu thereof. cash (without interest) in an amount equal 
to the product of (i) such fractional part of a share of WAXS Common Stock multiplied by (ii) the 
average of the daily closing price for a share of WAXS Common Stock on the Nasdaq for the ten 
( I O )  consecutive trading days in which such shares are traded on the Nasdaq, ending at the close of 
trading on the date of the Effective Time or. if such date is not a business day, the business day 
immediately preceding the date on which the Effective Time occurs. As promptly as practicable 
after the determination of the amount of cash. if any. to be paid to holders of fractional interests. the 
Exchange Agent shall so notify WAXS, and WAXS shall promptly deposit such amount with the 
Exchange Agent and shall cause the Exchange Agent to promptly forward payments to such holders 
of fractional interests subject to and in accordance with the terms hereof. 
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2.5 No Further Ownership Riehts in STAR Common Stock. As applicable. all shares of 
WAXS Common Stock issued and cash paid upon conversion of shares of STAR Common Stock 
in accordance with the terms of Article I and this Article 11 (including any cash paid pursuant to 
Section 2.4) shall be deemed to have been issued or paid in full satisfaction of all rights pertaining 
to the shares of STAR Common Stock. 

2.6 Termination of Exchanee Fund. Any portion of the Exchange Fund which remains 
undistributed to the holders of Certificates for six (6) months after the Effective Time shall be 
delivered to the Surviving Corporation or otherwise on the instruction of the Surviving Corporation. 
and any holders of the Certificates who have not theretofore complied with this Article I1 shall 
thereafter look only to the Surviving Corporation and WAXS for the Merger Consideration with 
respect to the shares of STAR Common Stock formerly represented thereby to which such holders 
are entitled pursuant to Section 1.6 and Section 2.2, any cash in lieu of fractional shares of WAXS 
Common Stock to which such holders are entitled pursuant to Section 2.4 and any dividends or 
distributions with respect to shares of WAXS Common Stock to which such holders are entitled 
pursuant to Section 2.3. Any such portion of the Exchange Fund remaining unclaimed by holders 
of shares of STAR Common Stock five (5)  years after the Effective Time (or such earlier date 
immediately prior to such time as such amounts would otherwise escheat to or become property of 
any Governmental Entity (as defined in Section 3.l(c)(3)) shall, to the extent permitted by law, 
become the property of the Surviving Corporation free and clear of any claims or interest of any 
Person previously entitled thereto. 

2.7 No Liability. None of WAXS, Merger Sub, STAR, the Surviving Corporation or the 
Exchange Agent shall be liable to any Person in respect of any Merger Consideration from the 
Exchange Fund delivered to a public official pursuant to any applicable abandoned property, escheat 
or similar law. 

2.8 Investment of the Exchanee Fund. The Exchange Agent shall invest any cash 
included in the Exchange Fund as directed by the Surviving Corporation on a daily basis. Any 
interest and other income resulting from such investments shall promptly be paid to the Surviving 
Corporation. 

2.9 Lost Certificates. If any Certificate shall have been lost, stolen or destroyed. upon 
the making of an affidavit of that fact by the Person claiming such Certificate to be lost. stolen or 
destroyed and, ifrequired by the Surviving Corporation, the posting by such Penonofa bond in such 
reasonable amount as the Surviving Corporation may direct as indemnity against any claim that may 
be made against it with respect to such Certificate. the Exchange Agent will deliver in exchange for 
such lost stolen or destroyed Certificate the applicable Merger Consideration with respect to the 
shares of STAR Common Stock formerly represented thereby, any cash in lieu of fractional shares 
of WAXS Common Stock, and unpaid dividends and distributions on shares of WAXS Common 
Stock deliverable in respect thereof, pursuant to this Agreement. 
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2.10 Withholding Rights. Each ofthe Surviving Corporation and W A X  shall be entitled 
to deduct and withhold from the consideration otherwise payable pursuant to this Agreement to any 
holderofsharesofSTAR Common Stock such amounts as it is required to deduct and withhold with 
respect to the making of such payment under the Code and the rules and regulations promulgated 
thereunder. or any provision of state, local or foreign tax law. To the extent that amounts are so 
withheld by the Surviving Corporation or WAXS. as the case may be. such withheld amounts shall 
be treated for all purposes ofthis Agreement as having been paid to the holder ofthe shares of STAR 
Common Stock in respect of which such deduction and withholding was made by the Surviving 
Corporation or WAXS. as the case may be. 

2.1 I Stock Transfer Books. The stock transfer books of STAR shall be closed 
immediately upon the Effective Time and there shall be no further registration of transfers of shares 
of STAR Common Stock thereafter on the records of STAR. On or after the Effective Time, any 
Certificates presented to the Exchange Agent or WAXS for any reason shall be converted as 
provided in Articles I and I1 hereof. 

ARTICLE I11 

REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES 

3.1 Reoresentations and Warranties of WAXS and Mereer Sub. Except as set forth in 
the WAXS SEC Reports (as defined below) filed and publicly available prior to the date hereof or 
the WAXS Disclosure Schedule delivered by WAXS to STAR prior to the execution of this 
Agreement (the "WAXS Disclosure Schedule") (each section ofwhich qualifies the correspondingly 
numbered representation and warranty or covenant to the extent specified therein), WAXS and 
Merger Sub represent and warrant to STAR as follows: 

(a) Oreanization: Standine and Power: Subsidiaries. 

(1) Each of WAXS, its Subsidiaries (as defined in Section 8.12) and 
Merger Sub is a corporation duly organized, validly existing and in good standing under the 
laws of itsjurisdiction of incorporation or organization, has the requisite power and authority 
to own, lease and operate its properties and to carry on its business as now being conducted, 
except where the failure to be so organized. existing and in good standing or to have such 
power and authority would not have a Material Adverse Effect on WAXS, and is duly 
qualified and in good standing to do business in each jurisdiction in which the nature of its 
business or the ownership or leasing of its properties makes such qualification necessary 
other than in such jurisdictions where the failure to so qualify or to be in good standing 
would not have a Material Adverse Effect on WAXS. The copies of the certificate of 
incorporation and bylaws of WAXS and Merger Sub which were previously furnished or 
made available to STAR are true, complete and correct copies ofsuch documents as in effect 
on the date of this Agreement. 
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( 2 )  Exhibit 21.1 to WAXS's Annual Report on Form IO-K for the year 
ended Decemberjl. 1998 includesall theSubsidiariesofWAXS whichasofthedatrofthis 
Agreement are Significant Subsidiaries (as defined in Rule 1-02 of Regulation S-X of the 
SEC). All the outstanding shares of capital stock of. or other equity interests in. each such 
Significant Subsidiary have been validly issued and are fully paid and nonassessable and are 
owned directly or indirectly by WAXS, free and clear ofall pledges, claims. liens. charges. 
encumbrances and security interests of any kind or nature whatsoever (collectively "w') 
and free of any other restriction (including any restriction on the right to vote. sell or 
otherwise dispose of such capital stock or other ownership interests). Neither WAXS nor 
any of its Subsidiaries directly or indirectly owns any equity or similar interest in. or any 
interest convertible into or exchangeable or exercisable for any equity or similar interest in. 
any corporation, partnership, joint venture or other business association or entity (other than 
the Subsidiaries of WAXS) that is or would reasonably be expected to be material to WAXS 
and its Subsidiaries taken as a whole. 

(b) Capital Structure. As of February 7,2000: 

(1) The authorized capital stock of WAXS consists of (A) 150,000,000 
sharesof WAXS Common Stock, ofwhich 53,787,805 shares are outstanding and no shares 
are held in the treasury of WAXS and (B) 10.000,OOO shares of Preferred Stock. par value 
S.01 per share. of which 50,000 shares designated as 4.25% Cumulative Senior Perpetual 
Convertible Preferred Stock, Series A, par value K O 1  per share (the "Series A Preferred 
Stock"), and 350,259.875 shares designated as Convertible Preferred Stock, Series C (the 
"Series C Preferred Stock"). are outstanding. WAXS has reserved or has available 4.347.827 
shares of WAXS Common Stock for issuance upon conversion of the Series A Preferred 
Stock and 18,027,478 shares of WAXS Common Stock for issuance upon conversion of the 
Series C Preferred Stock. All issued and outstanding shares of the capital stock of WAXS 
are duly authorized, validly issued. fully paid and nonassessable, and no class of capital stock 
is entitled to preemptive rights. In addition to the rights described in Section 3.l(b) of the 
WAXS Disclosure Schedule, there are outstanding options, warrants or other rights (a 
"W.AXS Stock ODtion") to acquire 13,133,837 shares of capital stock from WAXS. 

(2) No bonds, debentures. notes or other indebtedness of WAXS having 
the right to vote on any matters on which holders of capital stock of WAXS may vote 
("WAXS Voting Debt") are issued or outstanding. 

(3) Except as otherwise set forth in this Section 3.l(b) and as 
contemplated by Section 1.5 and Section 1.6, there are no securities. options, warrants, calls. 
rights. commitments, agreements. arrangements or undertakings ofany kind to which WAXS 
or any of its Subsidiaries is a party or by which any of them is bound obligating WAXS or 
any of its Subsidiaries to issue, deliver or sell, or cause to be issued, delivered or sold. 
additional shares of capital stock or other voting securities of WAXS or any of its 
Subsidiaries or obligating WAXS or any of its Subsidiaries to issue, grant. extend or enter 
into any such security. option, warmnt, call right, commitment, agreement, arrangement or 
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undertaking. There are no outstanding obligations of WAXS or any of its Subsidiaries to 
repurchase, redeem or otherwise acquire any shares ofcapital stock of WAXS or any of its 
Subsidiaries. 

(c) Authoritv; No Conflicts. 

( 1 )  WAXS and Merger Sub have all requisite corporate power and 
authority to enter into this Agreement and to consummate the Merger and the other 
transactions contemplated hereby. subject, in the case of WAXS. to the approval by the 
stockholders of WAXS by the Required WAXS Vote (as defined in Section 3.l(g)) of this 
Agreement. the Merger and the other transactions contemplated hereby and. in the case of 
Merger Sub. the affirmative vote of WAXS, as sole stockholder thereof, of this Agreement. 
the Merger and the other transactions contemplated hereby. The execution and delivery of 
this Agreement and the consummation of the Merger and the other transactions contemplated 
hereby have been duly authorized by all necessary corporate action on the part of WAXS and 
Merger Sub. subject, in the case of WAXS, to the approval by the stockholders of WAXS 
of this Agreement, the Merger and the transactions contemplated hereby by the Required 
WAXS Vote and subject. in the case of Merger Sub, to the affirmative vote of WAXS. as 
sole stockholder thereof, of this Agreement, the Merger and the other transactions 
contemplated hereby. This Agreement has been duly executed and delivered by WAXS and 
Merger Sub and constitutes a valid and binding agreement of each of WAXS and Merger 
Sub. enforceable against it in accordance with its terms, except to the extent that its 
enforceability may be limited by applicable bankruptcy. insolvency, reorganization. 
moratorium or other laws affecting the enforcement of creditors' rights generally or by 
general equitable principles (regardless of whether such enforceability is considered in a 
proceeding in equity or at law). 

(2) Subject, in the case of WAXS, to the approval by the stockholders of 
WAXS of this Agreement, the Merger and the transactions contemplated hereby by the 
Required WAXS Vote and, in the case of Merger Sub, the affirmative vote of WAXS. as sole 
stoekholder thereof, of this Agreement, the Merger and the other transactions contemplated 
hereby. the execution and delivery of this Agreement by WAXS and Merger Sub does not, 
and the consummation by WAXS and Merger Sub of the Merger and the other actions 
contemplated hereby will not, conflict with, or result in any violation of. or constitute a 
default (with or without notice or lapse of time, or both) under, or give rise to a right of 
termination, amendment, cancellation or acceleration of any obligation or the loss of a 
material benefit under, or the creation of a Lien on any assets (any such conflict. \iiolation. 
default, right of termination, amendment, cancellation or acceleration, loss or creation. a 
-'Violation") of: (A) any provision of the certificate of incorporation or bylaws of WAXS, 
any Subsidiary of WAXS or Merger Sub. or (B) except as would not havea Material Adverse 
Effect on WAXS and subject to obtaining or making the consents, approvals, orders. 
authorizations, registrations, declarations and filings referred to in paragraph (3) below, any 
loan or credit agreement. note, mortgage, bond, indenture, lease. or other agreement. 
obligation. instrument. permit, concession, franchise, license. judgment, order, decree, 
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statute. law. ordinance. rule or regulation applicable to WAXS. any Subsidiary of LVAXS 
or their respective properties or assets. 

(3)  No consent. approval. order or authorization of. or registration. 
declaration or tiling with. any supranational. national. state, municipal. local or foreign 
government. any instrumentality. subdivision. court. administrative agency or commission 
or other authority thereof. or any quasi-governmental or private body exercising any 
supranational. national. state. municipal. local or foreign regulatory. taxing. importing or 
other governmental or quasi-governmental authority (a "Governmental Entitv"). is required 
by or with respect to WAXS. any Subsidiary of WAXS or Merger Sub in connection with 
the execution and delivery ofthis Agreement by WAXS or Merger Sub or the consummation 
of the Merger and the other transactions contemplated hereby, except for those required 
under or in relation to (A) the Hart-Scott-Rodino Antitrust Improvements Act of 1976. as 
amended (the "HSR Act"). (B) state securities or "blue sky" laws (the "Blue Sky Laws"). (C) 
the Communications Act of 1996. as amended (the "Communications Act"), and all 
applicable state public utilities laws. (D) the Securities Act, (E) the Exchange Act. (F) the 
DGCL with respect to the filing of the Certificate of Merger, (G) rules and regulations of 
Nasdaq. (H) antitrust or other competition laws of other jurisdictions, (I) such consents. 
approvals. orders, authorizations, registrations, declarations and filings as are required by 
applicable laws. regulations and rules governing the telecommunications business including, 
without limitation, those of the United States Federal Communication Commission (the 
"E'), (J) any filings and approvals expressly contemplated by this Agreement. and (K) 
such consents, approvals. orders, authorizations, registrations, declarations and tiiings the 
failure of which to make or obtain would not have a Material Adverse Effect on WAXS. 
Consents, approvals. orders, authorizations. registrations, declarations and filings required 
under or in relation to any of the foregoing clauses (A) through (K) are hereinafter referred 
to as "Necessan, Consents", 

(d) Reports and Financial Statements. 

(1) WAXS has filed all required registration statements, prospectuses. 
reports. schedules, forms, statements and other documents required to be filed by it under the 
federal securities laws with the SEC since January I ,  1998 (collectively. including all 
exhibits thereto, the "WAXS SEC ReDorts"). No Subsidiary of WAXS, including, without 
limitation Merger Sub, is required to file any form, report, registration statement. prospectus 
or other document with the SEC not otherwise filed with a WAXS SEC Report. As of the 
respective times such documents were filed or, as applicable, became effective. or as 
subsequently amended, the WAXS SEC Reports complied as to form and content, in all 
material respects, with the requirements of the Securities Act and the Exchange Act, as the 
case may be. and the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder and, taken as a whole, the 
WAXS SEC Reports do not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state 
any material fact required to be stated therein or necessary to make the statements therein. 
in light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading. Each of the 
financial statements (including the related notes) included in the WAXS SEC Reports (or, 
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ifamended or superseded by a tiling prior to the date ofthis Apeement. then on the date of 
such tiling) presents fairly, in all material respects. the consolidated financial position and 
consolidated results of operations and cash flows of WAXS and its Subsidiaries as of the 
respective dates or for the respective periods set forth therein all in conformity with GAAP 
consistently applied during the periods involved except as otherwise noted therein. and 
subject. in the case of the unaudited interim financial statements. to normal and recurring 
year-end adjustments that have not been and are not expected to be material in amount. All 
of such WAXS SEC Reports. as oftheir respective dates (or as ofthe date ofany amendment 
to the respective WAXS SEC Report filed prior to the date ofthis Agreement). complied or 
will comply as to form in all material respects with the applicable requirements of the 
Securities Act and the Exchange Act and the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder, 

(2) Since December 31, 1998, WAXS and its Subsidiaries have not 
incurred any liabilities that are o fa  nature that would be required to be disclosed on a balance 
sheet of WAXS and its Subsidiaries or the footnotes thereto prepared in conformity with 
GAAP. other than (A) liabilities incurred in the ordinary course ofbusiness or (B) liabilities 
that would not have a Material Adverse Effect on WAXS. 

(e) Information Sumlied. None of the information supplied or to be supplied by 
WAXS for inclusion or incorporation by reference in the Joint Proxy StatementlProspectus (as 
defined herein) will, on the date it is first mailed to WAXS's and STAR's stockholders. as applicable. 
or at the time ofthe WAXS Stockholders Meeting orthe STARStockholders Meeting. asapplicable. 
contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state any material fact required to be stated 
therein or necessary in order to make the statements therein, in light of the circumstances under 
which they were made, not misleading. The Joint Proxy StatementlProspectus will, on the date it 
is first mailed to WAXS's and STAR's stockholders and at the time of the WAXS Stockholders 
Meeting and the STAR Stockholders Meeting. comply as to form in all material respects with the 
requirements of the Exchange Act and the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder. 

(f) WAXS Board Approval. The Board of Directors of WAXS, by resolutions 
duly adopted by unanimous vote at a meeting duly called and held and not subsequently rescinded 
or modified in any way (the "WAXS Board Amroval"). has duly (i)determined that this Agreement, 
the Merger and the other transactions contemplated hereby are fair to and in the best interests of 
WAXS and its stockholders, (ii) approved this Agreement. the Merger and the other transactions 
contemplated hereby and (iii) declared the advisability ofthis Agreement, the Merger and the other 
transactions contemplated hereby, and, further. (iv) recommended that the stockholders of WAXS 
approve and adopt this Agreement, the Merger and the other transactions contemplated heieby and 
directed that this Agreement and the transactions contemplated hereby be submitted for consideration 
by WAXS's stockholders at the WAXS Stockholders Meeting. 

(g) Reauired WAXS Stockholder Vote. Theaffirmative voteofholdersofshares 
of WAXS Common Stock, Series A Preferred Stock and Series C Preferred Stock. voting together 
as a single class, representingamajority ofthe outstanding shares of WAXS Common Stock. Series 
A Preferred Stock and Series C Preferred Stock (the "Reauired WAXS Vote"). is the only vote of 
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the holders of any class or series of WAXS capital stock necessary to adopt this Apaxnrnt  and 
approve the Merger and the other transactions contemplated hereby. 

(h) Reauired Merger Sub Board Aooroval. The Board of Directors of Merger 
Sub. by resolutions duly adopted by a unanimous written consent and not subsequently rescinded or 
modified in any way. has duly ( i )  determined that this Agreement. the Merger and the other 
transactions contemplated hereby are fair to and in the best interests of Merger Sub and its sole 
stockholder. WAXS. (ii) approved this Agreement. the Merger and the other transactions 
contemplated hereby and (iii) declared the advisability of this Agreement. the Merger and the other 
transactions contemplated hereby. and. further, (iv) recommended that WAXS adopt this Agreement 
and approve the Merger and the other transactions contemplated hereby and directed that this 
Agreement and the transactions Contemplated hereby be submitted for consideration by WAXS at 
a meeting duly called. 

( i )  Reauired Merger Sub Stockholder Vote. The affirmative vote of WAXS. as 
sole stockholder of Merger Sub. is the only vote of the holders of any class or series of Merger Sub 
capital stock necessary to adopt this Agreement and approve the Merger and the other transactions 
contemplated hereby. 

6) Litieation: Comoliance with Laws. 

(1) There is no suit, investigation. action or proceeding pending or, to the 
Knowledge of WAXS, threatened, against or affecting WAXS or any Subsidiary of WAXS 
having, or which would have a Material Adverse Effect on WAXS, nor is there any 
judgment. decree. injunction, rule or order of any Governmental Entity or arbitrator 
outstanding against WAXS or any Subsidiary of WAXS having, or which would have a 
Material Adverse Effect on WAXS. 

(2) Except as would not have a Material Adverse Effect on WAXS, 
WAXS and its Subsidiaries hold all permits. licenses, variances, authorizations, exemptions. 
orders and approvals of all Governmental Entities including, without limitation, the FCC and 
state public utilities commissions, which are necessary for the operation of the businesses of 
WAXS and its Subsidiaries (the "WAXS Permits"). Such WAXS permits are valid and in 
full force and effect and WAXS and its Subsidiaries are in compliance with the terms of the 
WAXS Permits, except where the failure to be valid and in full force and effect or to so 
comply would not have a Material Adverse Effect on WAXS. The businesses of WAXS and 
its Subsidiaries are not being conducted in violation of. and WAXS has not received any 
notices of violations with respect to, any law. ordinance or regulation of any Governmental 
Entity, except for possible violations which would not have a Material Adverse Effect on 
WAXS. WAXS is not aware of any threatened suspension, cancellation or invalidation of 
any such WAXS Permit. Except as set forth in the WAXS SEC Reports or except as would 
not have a Material Adverse Effect on WAXS. neither WAXS nor any of its Subsidiaries has 
received notice from either the FCC or any state public utilities commissions of any 
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complaint filed therewith concernins WAXS or any of its Subsidiaries. operations or 
services. 

(k) Absence of Certain Chanees or Events. Except for liabilities incurred in 
connection ui th  this Agreement or the transactions contemplated hereby. and except as permitted 
by Section 4.1. since December 31. 1998 through and including the date hereof. ( i )  WAXS and its 
Subsidiaries have conducted. in all material respects. their business only in the ordinary course and 
( i i )  there has not been any change. circumstance or event which has had. or would reasonably be 
expected to have. a Material Adverse Effect on WAXS. other than any change. circumstance or 
effect relating (A) to the economy or financial markets in general, or (B) in general to the industries 
in which WAXS and its Subsidiaries operate and not specifically relating to WAXS and its 
Subsidiaries. 

(I)  Intellectual Prooerty. Except as would not have a Material Adverse Effect on 
WAXS: (i) WAXS and each of its Subsidiaries owns, or is licensed to use (in each case. free and 
clear ofany Liens, or claim of rights therein by any third party) all Intellectual Property (as defined 
below) used in or necessary for the conduct of its business as currently conducted, (ii) the use of any 
Intellectual Property by WAXS and its Subsidiaries does not infringe on or otherwise violate the 
rights of any Person and is in accordance with any applicable license pursuant to which WAXS or 
any Subsidiary acquired the right to use any Intellectual Property; (iii) to the Knowledge of WAXS. 
no Person is challenging, infringing on or otherwise violating any right of WAXS or any of its 
Subsidiaries with respect to any Intellectual Property owned by andor  licensed to WAXS or its 
Subsidiaries; and (iv) neither WAXS nor any of its Subsidiaries has received any written notice of 
any pending claim with respect to any Intellectual Property used by WAXS and its Subsidiaries and 
to WAXS’s Knowledge no Intellectual Property ownedandor licensed by WAXS or its Subsidiaries 
is being used or enforced in a manner that would result in the abandonment, cancellation or 
unenforceability of such Intellectual Property. For purposes of this Agreement, “Intellectual 
Prooertv” shall mean trademarks, service marks, brand names, certification marks, trade dress and 
other indications of origin, the goodwill associated with the foregoing and registrations in any 
jurisdiction of, and applications in any jurisdiction to register, the foregoing, including any extension. 
modification or renewal of any such registration or application; inventions, discoveries and ideas, 
whether patentable or not, in any jurisdiction; patents, applications for patents (including, without 
limitation. divisions. continuations, continuations in part and renewal applications), and any 
renewals. extensions or reissues thereof. in any jurisdiction; non-public information, trade secrets 
and confidential information and rights in any jurisdiction to limit the use or disclosure thereof by 
any person; writings and other works, whether copyrightable or not, in any jurisdiction; registrations 
or applications for registration of copyrights in any jurisdiction, and any renewals or eftensions 
thereof; any similar intellectual property or proprietary rights; and any claims or causes of action 
arising out of or relating to any infringement or misappropriation of any of the foregoing. 

(m) Brokers or Finders. No agent, broker. investment banker, financial advisor 
or other firm or Person is or will be entitled to any broker’s or finder’s fee or any other similar 
commission or fee in connection with any ofthe transactions contemplated by this Agreement based 
upon arrangements made by or on behalf of WAXS, except Donaldson, Lufkin & Jenrette Securities 
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Corporation (the "WAXS Financial .Advisor"). whose fees and expenses will be paid by WAXS in 
accordance with WAXS's agreement with such firm. acopy ofwhich has been. or will be promptly 
when available. provided to STAR. 

(n) Opinion of WAXS Financial Advisor. WAXS has received the opinion ofthe 
WAXS Financial Advisor. dated the date of this Agreement. to the effect that as of such date. the 
Merger Consideration is fair. from a financial point of view, to WAXS and its stockholders. a copy 
of which has been provided to STAR. 

(0) Taxes. 

(1) (i) All material Tax Returns of WAXS and each of its Subsidiaries 
have been filed. or requests for extensions have been timely filed and have not expired; ( i i )  
all Tax Returns filed by WAXS and its Subsidiaries are complete and accurate in all material 
respects; (iii) all Taxes shown to be due on such Tax Returns or on subsequent assessments 
with respect thereto have been paid or adequate reserves have been established for the 
payment of such Taxes. and no other material Taxes are payable by WAXS or any of its 
Subsidiaries with respect to items or periods covered by such Tax Returns (whether or not 
shown on or reportable on such Tax Returns) or with respect to any period prior to the date 
of this Agreement; (iv) there are no material liens on any of the assets of WAXS or any of 
its Subsidiaries with respect to Taxes, other than liens for Taxes not yet due and payable or 
for Taxes that WAXS and its Subsidiaries is contesting in good faith through appropriate 
proceedings and for which appropriate reserves have been established; and (v) there is no 
audit, examination, deficiency or refund litigation or matter in controversy with respect to 
any Taxes of WAXS and its Subsidiaries that might reasonably be expected to result in a Tax 
determination which would have a Material Adverse Effect on WAXS. 

(2) There are no contracts, agreements. plans or arrangements. including 
but not limited to the provisions of this Agreement. covering any employee or former 
employee of WAXS or any of its Subsidiaries that, individually or collectively. could give 
riseto the payment of any amount (or portion thereof) that would not be deductible pursuant 
to Sections 280G, 404, or 162 of the Code. 

(3) Neither WAXS nor any of its Subsidiaries is a party to a Tax Sharing 
Agreement. 

(p) Certain Contracts. Neither WAXS nor any of its Subsidiaries is a party to or 
bound by ( i )  any "material contract" (as such term is defined in Item 601(b)( IO) of Regulation S-K 
of the SEC). ( i i )  any noncompetition agreement or any other agreement or arrangement [hat limits 
or otherwise restricts WAXS or any of its Subsidiaries or any successor thereto, from engaging or 
competing in a n y  line of business or in any geographic area. which agreement or arrangement would 
have a .Material Adverse Effect on WAXS or the Suniving Corporation after giving effect to the 
Merger. or ( i i i )  an} agreement or arrangement between WAXS or any of its Subsidiaries, on the one 
hand. and any affiliates. directors or officers of WAXS or its Subsidiaries, on the other hand, that 

15 ATLANTA41618616 



h n 

is not on arm's-length terms. All contracts tiled with the WAXS SEC Reports and the contracts 
listed on Section 3.l(p) of the WAXS Disclosure Schedule are valid. binding and are in full torcr 
and effect and enforceable in accordance with their respective terms. except to the extent that such 
enforceability may be subject to applicable bankruptcy. insolvency. moratorium. reorganization. or 
other laws affecting the enforcement or creditors' rights generally or by general equitable principles. 
and other than such contracts which by their terms are no longer in force or effect. Neither WAXS 
nor its Subsidiaries are in violation or breach of or default under any such contract. nor to WAXS's 
and its Subsidiaries' Knowledge, is any other party to any such contract in violation or breach or 
other default under any such contract. except for any such violation. breach or default which uould 
not have a Material Adverse Effect on WAXS. 

3.2 Reoresentations and Warranties of STAR. Except as set forth in the STAR SEC 
Reports (as defined below) filed and publicly available prior to the date hereof or the STAR 
Disclosure Schedule delivered by STAR to WAXS prior to the execution of this Agreement (the 
"STAR Disclosure Schedule") (each section of which qualifies the correspondingly numbered 
representation and warranty or covenant to the extent specified therein), STAR represents and 
warrants to WAXS as follows: 

(a) Orpanization: Standine and Power: Subsidiaries. 

(1) Each of STAR and its Subsidiaries is a corporation duly organized, 
validly existing and in good standing under the laws of its jurisdiction of incorporation or 
organization, has the requisite power and authority to own, lease and operate its properties 
and to cany on its business as now being conducted, except where the failure to be so 
organized, existing and in good standing or to have such power and authority would not have 
a Material Adverse Effect on STAR. and is duly qualified and in good standing to do 
business in each jurisdiction in which the nature of its business or the ownership or leasing 
of its properties makes such qualification necessary, other than in such jurisdictions where 
the failure to so qualify or to be in good standing would not have a Material Adverse Effect 
on STAR. The copies of the certificate of incorporation and bylaws of STAR which were 
previously furnished or made available to WAXS are true, complete and correct copies of 
such documents as in effect on the date of this Agreement. 

(2) Exhibit 21.1 to STARS Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year 
ended December 3 1, 1998 includes all the Subsidiaries of STAR which as of the date of this 
Agreement are Significant Subsidiaries (as defined in Rule 1-02 of Regulation S-X of the 
SEC). All the outstanding shares of capital stock of, or other equity interests in, each such 
Significant Subsidiary have been validly issued and are fully paid and nonassessable and are 
owned directly or indirectly by STAR. free and clear of all Liens and free of any other 
restriction (including any restriction on the right to vote, sell or otherwise dispose of such 
capital stock or other ownership interests). Neither STAR nor any of its Subsidiariesdirectly 
or indirectly owns any equity or similar interest in. or any interest convertible into or 
exchangeable or exercisable for any equity or similar interest in, any corporation, partnership. 
joint venture or other business association or entity (other than the Subsidiaries of STAR). 

16 ATLANTA 41b1865 6 



h 

that is or would reasonably be expected to be material to STAR and its subsidiaries taken 
as a whole. 

(b) Caoital Structure 

( I )  The authorized capital stock of STAR consists of (A) 50.000.000 
shares of STAR Common Stock. of uhich 58,683.33 1 shares are outstanding and no shares 
are held in the treasury of STAR and (B) 5.000.000 shares of preferred stock, par value 
$0.001 per share. of which no shares are outstanding. All issued and outstanding shares of 
the capital stock of STAR are duly authorized, validly issued. fully paid and nonassessable. 
and no class of capital stock is entitled to preemptive rights. There are outstanding options. 
warrants or other rights to acquire 4.173.571 shares of capital stock from STAR. Section 
3.Z(b) ofthe STARDisclosure Schedule lists theexercise price and vesting schedule for each 
STAR Stock Option. 

(2 )  No bonds. debentures. notes or other indebtedness of STAR having 
the right to vote on any matters on which holders of capital stock of STAR may vote("= 
Votine Debt") are issued or outstanding. 

(3) Except as otherwise set forth in this Section 3.2(b), there are no 
securities. options, warrants. calls, rights, commitments, agreements, arrangements or 
undertakings of any kind to which STARor any of its Subsidiaries is a party or by which any 
of them is bound obligating STAR or any of its Subsidiaries to issue, deliver or sell. or cause 
to be issued. delivered or sold, additional shares of capital stock or other voting securities of 
STARor any of its Subsidiaries or obligating STAR or any of its Subsidiaries to issue. grant. 
extend or enter into any such security, option, warrant, call, right, commitment. agreement. 
arrzngement or undertaking. There are no outstanding obligations of STAR or any of its 
Subsidiaries to repurchase, redeem or otherwise acquire any shares of capital stock of STAR 
or any of its Subsidiaries. 

(c) Authority: No Conflicts. 

( 1 ) STAR has all requisite corporate power and authority to enter into this 
Agreement and to consummate the Merger and the other transactions contemplated hereby. 
subject to the approval by the stockholders of STAR by the Required STAR Vote (as defined 
in Section 3.2(g)) of this Agreement. the Merger and the other transactions contemplated 
hereby. The execution and delivery of this Agreement and the consummation of th'e Merger 
and the other transactions contemplated hereby have been duly authorized by all necessary 
corporate action on the part of STAR. subject to the approval by the stockholders of STAR 
of this Agreement and the Merger and the other transactions contemplated hereby by the 
Required STAR Vote. This Agreement has been duly executed and delivered by STAR and 
constitutes a valid and binding agreement of STAR. enforceable against it in accordance with 
its terms, except to the extent that its enforceability may be limited by applicable bankruptcy, 
insolvency. reorganization. moratorium or other laws affecting the enforcement of creditors' 
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rights generally or by general equitable principles (regardless of whether such enforceability 
is considered in a proceeding in equity or at law). 

( 2 )  Subject to the approval by the stockholders of STAR of this 
Agreement.  the Merger and the other transactions contemplated hereby by the Required 
STAR Vote. the execution and delivery of this Agreement by STAR does not. and the 
consummation by STAR of the Merger and the other actions contemplated hereby will not. 
conflict with. or result in a Violation of: (A) any provision of the certificate of incorporation 
or bylaws of STAR or a Shareholder or any Subsidiary of STAR or (B) except as would not 
have a Material Adverse Effect on STAR. subject to obtaining or making the consents. 
approvals. orders. authorizations, registrations. declarations and filings referred to in 
paragraph (3)  below, any loan or credit agreement, note. mortgage. bond. indenture. lease. 
or other agreement. obligation, instrument. permit, concession. franchise, license. judgment. 
order. decree, statute, law. ordinance. rule or regulation applicable to STAR. any Subsidiary 
of STAR or their respective properties or assets. 

(3) No consent, approval. order or authorization of. or registration. 
declaration or filing with, any Governmental Entity is required by or with respect to STAR 
or any Subsidiary of STAR in connection with the execution and delivery of this Agreement 
by STAR, or the consummation of the Merger and the other transactions contemplated 
hereby, except the Necessary Consents and such consents, approvals, orders. authorizations, 
registrations. declarations and filings the failure of which to make or obtain would not have 
a Material Adverse Effect on STAR. 

(d) ReDons and Financial Statements. 

(1) STAR has filed all required registration statements, prospectuses, 
reports. schedules, forms, statements and other documents required to be filed by it under the 
federal securities laws with the SEC since January 1, 1998 (collectively, including all 
exhibits thereto, the ”STAR SEC Reoorts”). No Subsidiary of STAR is required to file any 
form. report, registration statement or prospectus or other document with the SEC not 
otherwise filed with an STAR SEC Report. As ofthe respective times such documents were 
filed or. as applicable, became effective. or as subsequently amended, the STAR SEC 
Reports complied as to form and content. in all material respects, with the requirements of 
the Securities Act and the Exchange Act. as the case may be, and the rules and regulations 
promulgated thereunder, and, taken as a whole. the STAR SEC Reports do not contain any 
untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state any material fact required to’be stated 
therein or necessary to make the statements therein. in light ofthe circumstances under which 
they were made, not misleading. Each of the financial statements (including the related 
notes) included in the STAR SEC Reports (or. if amended or superseded by a filing prior to 
the date of this Agreement. then on the date of such filing) presents fairly. in all material 
respects. the consolidated financial position and consolidated results of operations and cash 
flows of STAR and its Subsidiaries as of the respective dates or for the respective periods 
set forth therein, all in conformity with GAAP consistently applied during the periods 
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involved except as otherwise noted therein. and subject. in the case ofthe unaudited interim 
financial statements. to normal and recurring year-end adjustments that have not been and 
are not expected to be material in amount. All of such STAR SEC Reports. as of their 
respective dates (or as of the date of any amendment to the respective STAR SEC Repon 
tiled prior to the date of this Agreement). complied or will comply as to form in all material 
respects with the applicable requirements of the Securities Act and the Exchange Act and the 
rules and regulations promulgated thereunder. 

( 2 )  Since December 31, 1998. STAR and its Subsidiaries have not 
incurred any liabilities that are o fa  nature that would be required to be disclosed on a balance 
sheet of STAR and its Subsidiaries or the footnotes thereto prepared in conformity with 
GAAP. other than (A) liabilities incurred in the ordinary course of business or (B) liabilities 
that would not have a Material Adverse Effect on STAR. 

( e )  Information Suodied. None of the information supplied or to be supplied by 
STAR for inclusion or incorporation by reference in the Joint Proxy Statement'Prospectus will. on 
the date it is first mailed to WAXS's or STARS stockholders, as applicable. or at the time of the 
WAXS Stockholders Meeting (as defined in Section 5.1) or the STAR Stockholders Meeting, as 
applicable, contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state any material fact required 
to be stated therein or necessary in order to make the statements therein. in light of the circumstances 
under which they were made, not misleading. 

(f) Board ADDrOVal. The Board of Directors of STAR, by resolutions duly 
adopted by unanimous vote at a meeting duly called and held and not subsequently rescinded or 
modified in any way (the "STAR Board ADDroval"), has duly (i) determined that this Agreement. the 
Merger and the other transactions contemplated hereby are fair to and in the best interests of STAR 
and its stockholders. (ii) approved this Agreement. the Merger and the other transactions 
contemplated hereby and (iii) declared the advisability of this Agreement, the Merger and the other 
transactions contemplated hereby, and, further. (iv) recommended that the stockholders of STAR 
approve and adopt this Agreement, the Merger and the other transactions contemplated hereby and 
directed that this Agreement and the transactions contemplated hereby be submitted for consideration 
by STAR'S stockholders. 

(9) Reauired Stockholder Vote. The affirmative vote ofthe holders o fa  majority 
of the outstanding shares of STAR Common Stock (the "Reauired STAR Vote") is the only vote of 
the holders of any class or series of STAR capital stock necessary to adopt this Agreement and 
approve the Merger and the other transactions contemplated hereby. 

(h) Litieation: Comoliance with Laws. 

(1) There is no suit. investigation. action or proceeding pending or, to the 
Knowledge of STAR, threatened, against or affecting STAR or any Subsidiary of STAR 
having. or which would have a Material Adverse Effect on STAR. nor is there any judgment. 
decree. injunction, rule or order of any Governmental Entity or arbitrator outstanding against 
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STAR or any Subsidiary of STAR having. or which would have a Material Adverse Effect 
on STAR. 

( 2 )  Except as would not have a Material Adverse Effect on STAR. STAR 
and its Subsidiaries hold all permits. licenses. variances. authorizations. exemptions. orders 
and approvals of all Governmental Entities including. without limitation. the FCC and state 
public utilities commissions. necessary for the operation of the businesses of STAR and its 
Subsidiaries (the "STAR Permits"). Such STAR permits are valid and in full force and effect 
and STARand its Subsidiaries are incompliance with the terms ofthe STAR Permits. except 
where the failure to be valid and in full force and effect or to so comply would not have a 
Material Adverse Effect on STAR. The businesses of STAR and its Subsidiaries are not 
being conducted in violation of. and STAR has not received any notices of violations with 
respect to. any law. ordinance or regulation ofany Governmental Entity. except for possible 
violations which would not have a Material Adverse Effect on STAR. STAR is not aware 
of any threatened suspension. cancellation or invalidation of any STAR Permit. Except as 
set forth in the STAR SEC Reports or except as would not have a Material Adverse Effect 
on STAR. STAR has not received notice from either the FCC or any state public utilities 
commissions of any complaint filed therewith concerning STAR or any of its Subsidiaries, 
operations or services. 

(i) Absence of Certain Changes or Events. Except for liabilities incurred in 
connection with this Agreement or the transactions contemplated hereby, except as disclosed in the 
STAR SEC Reports filed prior to the date ofthis Agreement. and except as permitted by Sec t ion42 
since December 3 1. 1998 through and including the date hereof. (i) STAR and its Subsidiaries have 
conducted. in all material respects, their business only in the ordinary course and (ii) there has not 
been any change. circumstance or event which has had, or would reasonably be expected to have, 
a Material Adverse Effect on STAR, other than any change, circumstance or effect relating (A) to 
the economy or financial markets in general. or (B) in general to the industries in which STAR and 
its Subsidiaries operate and not specifically relating to STAR and its Subsidiaries. 

' Q) Emolovee Benefits Matters. 

( I )  Section 3.2fi)(l) of the STAR Disclosure Schedule sets forth a list of 
all material agreements, arrangements. commitments, and policies (i) which relate to 
employee benefits; (ii) which pertain to present or former employees, retirees, directors or 
independent contractors (or their beneficiaries. dependents or spouses) of STAR; and 
(iii) which are currently or expected to be adopted. maintained by, sponsorea by, or 
contributed to by STAR or any other employer (a "STAR Affiliate") which. under Section 
4 14 of the Code. would constitute a single employer with STAR (collectively referred to as 
"STAR Emdovee Benefit Plans"). including. but not limited to, all: (A) employee benefit 
plans as defined in Section 3(3) of ERISA; and (B) all other deferred compensation. 
incentive, profit-sharing, thrift, stock ownership, stock appreciation rights, bonus, stock 
option. stock purchase. vacation, or other benefit plans or arrangements. 
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(2 )  STAR and all STAR Affiliates have complied with their respecrive 
substantive obligations with respect to all STAR Employee Benefit Plans (including. bur not 
limited to, (i) filing or distributing all reports or notices required by ERISA or the Code and 
( i i )  complying with all requirements of Part 6 of Title I of ERISA and Code Section 49SOB) 
and have maintained the STAR Employee Benefit Plans in compliance with all applicable 
laws and regulations (including. but not limited to. ERISA and the Code). except where the 
failure to comply with such obligations would not result in a Material Adwrse Effect on 
STAR. Each STAR Employee Benefit Plan that is intended to qualify under Code Section 
401(a) has received a favorable determination letter (or other ruling indicating its tax- 
qualified status) from the IRS. and the IRS has not threatened or taken any action to revoke 
any favorable determination letter issued with respect to any such STAR Employee Benefit 
Plan. No statement. either oral or written. has been made by STAR or any STAR Affiliate 
(or any agent of either) to any Person regarding any STAR Employee Benefit Plans that is 
not in accordance with the terms of that plan that would have a Material Adverse Effect on 
STAR. 

(3) STAR has made available to WAXS true, correct and complete copies 
of all of the current documents relating to the STAR Employee Benefit Plans. including. but 
not limited to: (i) all plan texts (including any subsequent amendments). trust instruments 
and other funding arrangementsadopted or entered into in connection with each ofthe STAR 
Employee Benefit Plans; (ii) the notices and election forms used to notify employees and 
their dependents of their continuation coverage rights under group health plans (under Code 
Section4980B(f) and ERISA Section606). if applicable; and (iii) the most recent Form 5500 
annual reports (including all schedules thereto). summary plan descriptions and favorable 
determination letters, if applicable, for Employee Benefit Plans. Since the date such 
documents were supplied to WAXS, no plan amendments have been adopted and no such 
amendments or changes shall be adopted or made prior to the Closing Date without WAXS’s 
approval. except as required by applicable law after the date hereof. 

(4) Neither STAR nor any STAR Affiliate has any agreement, 
mahgement, commitment or understanding to create any additional STAR Employee Benefit 
Plans or to continue, modify, change or terminate any existing STAR Employee Benefit 
Plans that could have a Material Adverse Effect on STAR. 

(5) None of the STAR Employee Benefit Plans (i) is currently under 
investigation, audit or review by the U.S. Department oflabor,  the IRS, the Pension Benefit 
Guaranty Corporation or any other federal or state agency or (ii) is liable for any federal. 
state, local or foreign taxes that would have a Material Adverse Effect on STAR. Except for 
such liabilities that would not have a Material Adverse Effect on STAR. there is no 
transaction in connection with which STAR or any STAR Affiliate could be subject to either 
acivil penalty assessed pursuant to ERISA Section 502. a tax imposed by Code Section 4975 
or liability for a breach of fiduciary responsibility under ERISA. 
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( 6 )  Other than routine claims for benefits payable to participants or 
beneficiaries in accordance Lvith the terms ofthe STAR Employee Benefit Plans. or relatins 
to qualified domestic relations orders (as defined in Section 414(p) of the Code). there are 
no claims. pending or threatened. by any participant or beneficiaq against any of the STAR 
Employee Benefit Plans or any fiduciary of any of the STAR Employee Benefit Plans that 
could have a Material Adverse Effect on STAR. 

(7) Neither STAR nor any STAR Affiliate has at any time maintained. 
sponsored or contributed to any "pension plan" as defined in ERISA Section 3(2) which is 
subject to Title IV of ERISA or contributed to any pension plan which is a "multiemployer 
plan" as defined in ERISA Section 3(37)(A). 

(8) Section 3.2(i)(8) ofthe STAR Disclosure Schedule sets forth a list of 
all agreements. arrangements. commitments and STAR Employee Benefit Plans. under 
which (i) any benefits will be increased. (ii) the vesting or exercisability of benefits will be 
accelerated, (iii) amounts will become immediately payable, and/or (iv) the immediate 
funding for any benefits is required. upon the occurrence of the transaction contemplated by 
this Agreement. Section 3.26)(8) of the STAR Disclosure Schedule sets forth an estimate 
of the total value and/or cost of any such change in control benefits andor  funding and the 
time periods in which such payments must be made and/or funding obligations must be met. 
including but not limited to the value and/or costs ofany gross up payments for tax purposes. 

To the Knowledge of STAR, no key employee, or group of employees 
of STAR has any plans to terminate employment with STAR other than employees with 
plans to retire. STAR has complied in all material respects with all laws relating to the 
employment of labor. including provisions thereof relating to wages. hours and equal 
opportunity. and it does not have any material labor relations problems (including threatened 
or actual strikes or work stoppages or material grievances). 

(9) 

(IO) Neither STAR nor any of its Subsidiaries is a party to any collective 
bafgaining agreement. 

(k) Intellectual Promrtv. Except as would not have a Material Adverse Effect on 
STAR: ( i )  STAR and each of its Subsidiaries owns. or is licensed to use (in each case. free and clear 
of any Liens. or claims of rights therein by any third party), all Intellectual Property used in or 
necessary for the conduct of its business as currently conducted, (i i)  the use of any Intellectual 
Property by STAR and its Subsidiaries does not infringe on or otherwise violate the rights of any 
Person and is in accordance with any applicable license pursuant to which STAR or any Subsidiary 
acquired the right to use any Intellectual Property: (i i i)  to the Knowledge of STAR. no Person is 
challengins. infringing on or otherwise violating any right of STAR or any of its Subsidiaries with 
respect to any Intellectual Property owned by and/or licensed to STAR or its Subsidiaries: and (iv) 
neither STAR nor any of its Subsidiaries has received any written notice of any pending claim with 
respect to any Intellectual Property used by STAR and its Subsidiaries and to STAR'S Knowledge. 
no Intellectual Property owned and/or licensed by STAR or its Subsidiaries is being used or enforced 
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in a manner that would result in the abandonment. cancellation or unenforceability of such 
Intellectual Property. 

( I )  Brokers or Finders. NO agent. broker. investment banker. financial advisor 
or other firm or Person is or will be entitled to any broker's or tinder's fee or any other similar 
commission or fee in connection with any ofthe transactionscontemplated by this Agreement. based 
upon arrangements made by or on behalf of STAR except Deutsche Bank Alex Brow-n (the "STAR 
Financial Advisor"). whose fees and expenses will be paid by STAR in accordance with STAR'S 
agreement with such firm. a copy of which has been, or will be promptly when available. provided 
to WAXS. 

(m) Opinion of STAR Financial Advisor. STAR has received the opinion of the 
STAR Financial Advisor. dated the date of this Agreement, to the effect that as of such date. the 
Merger Consolidation is fair, from a financial point of view, to STAR and its stockholders. a copy 
of which has been provided to WAXS. 

(n) Taxes. 

( 1 )  (i)AllmaterialTaxReturnsofSTARandeachofitsSubsidiarieshave 
been filed. or requests for extensions have been timely filed and have not expired; (ii) all Tax 
Returns filed by STAR and its Subsidiaries are complete and accurate in all material 
respects: (iii) all Taxes shown to be due on such Tax Returns or on subsequent assessments 
with respect thereto have been paid or the STAR SEC Reports reflect that adequate reserves 
have been established for the payment of such Taxes, and no other material Taxes are 
payable by STAR and its Subsidiaries with respect to items or periods covered by such Tax 
Returns (whether or not shown on or reportable on such Tax Returns) or with respect to any 
period prior to the date of this Agreement; (iv) STAR and each of its Subsidiaries have 
disclosed on its federal income Tax Return all positions taken therein that could give rise to 
a substantial understatement of income Tax within the meaning of Section 6662 ofthe Code; 
(v) there are no material liens on any of the assets of STAR or any of its Subsidiaries with 
respect to Taxes. other than liens for Taxes not yet due and payable or for Taxes that STAR 
or any of its Subsidiaries is contesting in good faith through appropriate proceedings and for 
which the STAR SEC Reports reflect that appropriate reserves have been established; (vi) no 
power of attorney to deal with Tax matters or waiver or extension of any statute of 
limitations with respect to Taxes has been granted by STAR or any of its Subsidiaries; and 
(vii) there is no (X) audit, examination. deficiency or refund litigation or matter in 
controversy with respect to any Taxes of STAR and its Subsidiaries nor (Y) has the IRS nor 
any other Tax authority asserted any claim for Taxes in writing, or to the knowledge of 
STAR. is threatening to assert any claim for Taxes. that might reasonably be expected to 
result in a Tax determination which would have a Material Adverse Effect on STAR. 

(2) [INTENTIONALLY OMITTED.] 
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( 3 )  There are no contracts. agreements. plans or arrangements. including 
but not limited to the provisions of this Apeement. covering any employee or former 
employee of STAR or any of its Subsidiaries that. individually or collectively. could give rise 
to the Payment ofany amount (or portion thereof) that would not be deductible pursuant to 
Sections 280G. 404. or 162 of the Code. 

(4) Neither STAR nor any of its Subsidiaries is a party to ( A )  a Tax 
Sharing Agreement. (B) transactions which have produced deferred intercompany gains. 
losses or other intercompany items or excess loss accounts (within the meaning of Treas. 
Reg. S 1.1502-13 or 1.1502-19. respectively, or any predecessor regulations or any 
comparable items for state, local or non-United States Tax purposes), or (C) any joint 
venture. partnership, limited liability company or other arrangement or contract that should 
be treated as a partnership for federal income Tax purposes or as to which. an election has 
been made under Treas. Reg. 5 30 1.7701 -3 to have the entity disregarded for federal income 
Tax purposes as an entity separate from its owner. 

(5) None of STAR and its Subsidiaries (A) has or has had operations or 
assets outside the United States taxable asa"branch by the United Statesor as a"permanent 
establishment" by any foreign country, (B) has received written notice of any claim made by 
a Tax authority in a jurisdiction where STAR or any of its Subsidiaries does not file Tax 
Returns that it is or may be subject to Taxes in such jurisdiction, (C) does business in or 
derives income from any state, local territorial or non-United States taxing jurisdiction other 
than those for which Tax Returns have been filed and made available to WAXS pursuant to 
Section 3.2 (n)(6) hereof. (D) is a"passive foreign investment company" within the meaning 
of the Code. (E) has participated in or cooperated with an international boycott or has been 
requested to do so in connection with any prior transaction or the transactions contemplated 
by this Agreement, and (F) has availed itself of any Tax amnesty. Tax holiday or similar 
relief in any jurisdiction. 

(6) STAR has made available to WAXS true copies of (A) all material 
Tax Returns that STAR or its Subsidiaries have filed since January 1, 1994 and (B) all 
material correspondence, including without limitation, closing agreements. private letter 
rulings. advance pricing agreements and gain recognition agreements and other written 
submissions to or communications with any Tax authorities. 

(0) Certain Contracts. Neither STAR nor any of its Subsidiaries is a party to or 
bound by (i) any-"material contract" (as such term is defined in Item 601(b)( IO) of Regultition S-K 
of the SEC). (ii) any noncompetition agreement or any other agreement or arrangement that limits 
or otherwise restricts STAR or any of its Subsidiaries or any successor thereto or that would. after 
the Effective Time, limit or restrict WAXS or the Surviving Corporation or any of its affiliates or 
any successor thereto. from engaging or competing in any line ofbusiness or in any geographic area. 
which agreement or arrangement would have a Material Adverse Effect on WAXS or the Surviving 
Corporation. (iii) any agreement or arrangement between STAR or any of its Subsidiaries. on the one 
hand, and any affiliates. directors or officers of STAR or its Subsidiaries, on the other hand, that is 
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not on arm's-length terms or (iv) any agreement or arraniement that may require the payment of 
money or provision of services in excess ofS500.000 annually or S I .OOO.OOO over the term of such 
agreement or arrangement. All contracts filed with the STAR SEC Reports and the contracts listed 
on Section 3 . 3 0 )  ofthe STAR Disclosure Schedule are valid binding and are in full force and effect 
and enforceable in accordance with their respective terms. except to the extent that such 
enforceability may be subject to applicable bankruptcy. insolvency, moratorium. reorganization. or 
other laws affecting the enforcement of creditors. rights generally or by general equitable principles. 
and other than such contracts which by their terms are no longer in force or effect. Neither STAR 
nor its Subsidiaries are in violation or breach of or default under any such contract. nor to ST.4R.s 
Knowledge. is any other party to any such contract in violation or breach or other default under any 
such contract. except for any such violation. breach or default which would not have a Material 
Adverse Effect on STAR. 

ARTICLE IV 

COVENANTS RELATING TO CONDUCT OF BUSINESS 

4.1 Covenants of STAR. During the period from the date of this Agreement and 
continuing until the Effective Time. STAR agrees as to itself and its Subsidiaries that (except as 
expressly required. contemplated or permitted by this Agreement or the STAR Disclosure Schedule 
or as required by a Governmental Entity of competent jurisdiction or any law or regulation or to the 
extent that WAXS shall otherwise consent in writing, which consent shall not be unreasonably 
withheld. delayed or conditioned): 

(a) Ordinarv Course. STAR and its Subsidiaries shall carry on their respective 
businesses in the usual. regular and ordinary course in all material respects. in substantially the same 
manner as heretofore conducted, and shall use all reasonable efforts to preserve intact their present 
lines of business. maintain their rightsand franchises and preserve their relationships withcustomers. 
suppliers and others having significant business dealings with them. 

(b) Dividends: Changes in Share CaDital. STAR shall not. and shall not permit 
any of its Subsidiaries to. and shall not propose to. (i)  declare or pay any dividends on or make other 
distributions in respect of any of its capital stock. except for dividends by wholly owned Subsidiaries 
of STAR. (ii) split. combine or reclassify any of its capital stock or issue or authorize or propose the 
issuance of any other securities in respect of. in lieu of or in substitution for, shares of its capital 
stock. except for any such action by a wholly owned Subsidiary of STAR which remains'a wholly 
owned Subsidiary after consummation of such transaction. or (iii) repurchase, redeem or otherwise 
acquire any shares of capital stock of STAR or any of its Subsidiaries or any securities convertible 
into or exercisable for any shares of such capital stock except for the purchase from time to time by 
STAR of STAR Common Stock in the ordinary course of business consistent with past practice in 
connection with the STAR Employee Benefit Plans. 
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(c) Issuance of Securities. STAR shall not, and shall not permit any of its 
Subsidiaries to. issue. deliver or sell. or authorize or propose the issuance. delivery or sale of. any 
shares of its capital stock of any class. any STAR Voting Debt or any securities convertible into or 
exercisable for. or any rights. warrants or options to acquire. any such shares or STAR Voting Debt. 
or enter into any agreement with respect to any ofthe foregoing. other than ( i )  the issuance ofSTAR 
Common Stock upon the exercise of STAR Stock Options or in connection with other stock-based 
Benefits Plans outstanding on the date hereof. in each case in accordance with their present terms. 
or (i i)  issuances by a wholly-owned Subsidiary of STAR of capital stock to such Subsidiary's parent 
or another wholly-owned subsidiary of STAR. 

(d) Govemine. Documents. Except to the extent required by the rules and 
regulationsofthe Nasdaq. neither STAR nor any of its Subsidiaries shall amend or propose to amend 
their respective certificates of incorporation, by-laws or other governing documents. 

(e) Acauisitions. STAR shall not. and shall not permit any of its Subsidiaries 
to acquire or agree to acquire, by merging or consolidating with. or by purchasing a substantial equity 
interest in or a substantial portion of the assets of, or by any other manner, any business or any 
corporation. partnership, association or other business organization or division thereof or otherwise 
acquire or agree to acquire any assets (other than the acquisition of assets used in the operations of 
the business of STAR and its Subsidiaries in the ordinary course). 

(r) &&. Except as set forth in Section 4.1 (f) of the STAR Disclosure Schedule. 
STAR shall not. and shall not permit any of its Subsidiaries to, sell or agree to sell by merging or 
consolidating with, or by selling or substantial equity interest in or a substantial portion of the assets 
of. or by any other manner, any business or any corporation, partnership. association or other 
business organization or division thereof or otherwise sell or agree to sell any assets (other than the 
sale of assets used in the operations of the business of STAR and its Subsidiaries in the ordinary 
course: provided, however, STAR may enter into a definitive agreement for (and consummate) the 
PT-l Sale on terms and conditions which would satisfy the condition set forth in Section 6.2(h) 
hereof). 

(g) Investments: Indebtedness. STAR shall not, and shall not permit any of its 
Subsidiaries to. (i) make any loans, advances or capital commitments to, or investments in, any other 
Person. other than (x) by STAR or a Subsidiary of STAR to or in STAR or in any Subsidiary of 
STAR or (y) pursuant to any contract or other legal obligation of STAR or any of its Subsidiaries 
existing at the date hereof or (ii) create, incur. assume or suffer to exist any indebtedness. issuances 
of debt or securities, guarantees, loans or advances not in existence as of the date herebf except 
pursuant to credit facilities, indentures and other arrangements in existence on the date hereof or in 
the ordinary course of business consistent with past practice. in each case as such credit facilities. 
indentures and other arrangements may be amended. extended. modified, refunded. renewed or 
refinanced after the date hereof. 

(h) ComDensation. Other than as contemplated by Section 4.l(h) of the STAR 
Disclosure Schedule, STAR shall not increase the amount of compensation of any director or 
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executive officer except in the ordinary course of business consistent with past practice or as 
required by an existing agreement. make any increase in or commitment to increase any employee 
benefits. issue any additional STAR Stock Options. adopt or make any commitment to adopt any 
additional employee benefit plan or make any contribution. other than regularly scheduled 
contributions. to any Employee Benefit Plan. 

( i )  Accounting Methods: Income Tax Matters. STAR shall not change its 
methods of accounting in effect on December 3 1. 1998. except as required by changes in GAAP as 
concurred in by STAR's independent auditors. STAR shall not (i) change its fiscal year. ( i i )  make 
any material tax election. (iii) adopt or change any Tax accounting method. (iv) enter into any 
closing agreement. (v) settle or compromise a Tax liability with a Tax authority. (vi) surrender any 
right to claim a refund of Taxes. or (vii) take (or permit any Subsidiary of STAR to take) any other 
action which would have the effect of materially increasing the Tax liability or materially decreasing 
any Tax Asset of STAR or any of its Subsidiaries. other than in the ordinary course of business 
consistent with past practice. 

(i) Certain Aareements. STAR shall not. and shall not permit any of its 
Subsidiaries to. enter into any agreement or arrangement that limits or otherwise restricts STAR or 
any of its Subsidiariesor any oftheir respective affiliates or any successor thereto. or that could. after 
the Effective Time. limit or restrict WAXS or the Surviving Corporation or any of their respective 
affiliates or any successor thereto, from engaging or competing in any line of business or, in any 
geographic area which agreement or arrangement would reasonably be expected to have a Material 
Adverse Effect on WAXS or the Surviving Corporation. 

(k) Other Actions. Notwithstanding the fact that STAR may take certain actions 
as permitted under Article IV hereof, STAR agrees not to take any action which could reasonably 
be expected to cause the Merger to fail to qualify as a reorganization within the meaning of Section 
368(a) of the Code. 

(I)  Litigation. STAR shall not and shall not permit any of its Subsidiaries to 
settle or. compromise any litigation, except where the amount paid or payable, in eachcase, does not 
exceed $200.000. 

4.2 Control of STAR's Business. Except as provided in Section 5.9, nothing contained 
in this Agreement shall give WAXS, directly or indirectly, the right to control or direct STARS 
operations prior to the Effective Time. Prior to the Effective Time, STAR shall exercise, consistent 
with the terms-and conditions of this Agreement. complete control and supervision over its 
operations. 

27 ATLANTA41b1861.6 



ARTICLE V 

ADDITIONAL AGREEMENTS 

A 

5.1 Preoaration of Prow Statement: Stockholders Meetings. 

(a) As promptly as reasonably practicable following the date hereof. WAXS and 
STAR shall prepare (in form and substance reasonably satisfactory to each of WAXS and STAR) 
and file with the SEC proxy materials which shall constitute the joint proxy statement and prospectus 
in connection with the WAXS Stockholders Meeting and the STAR Stockholders Meeting (such 
proxy statement and prospectus. and any amendments or supplements thereto. the "Joint Proxv 
Statement/ProsDectus"~ and WAXS shall prepare (in form and substance reasonably satisfactory to 
each of WAXS and STAR) and file a registration statement on Form S-4 with respect to the issuance 
of WAXS Common Stock in the Merger (the "Reeistration Statement"). The Joint Proxy 
Statement/Prospectus will be included in and will constitute a part of the Registration Statement as 
WAXS's prospectus. The Registration Statement and the Joint Proxy Statement/Prospectus shall 
comply as to form in all material respects with the applicable provisions of the Securities Act and 
the Exchange Act and the rules and regulations thereunder. Each of WAXS and STAR shall use 
reasonable efforts to have the Registration Statement declared effective by the SEC as promptly as 
reasonably practicable after filing with the SEC and to keep the Registration Statement effective as 
long as is necessary to consummate the Merger and the actions contemplated thereby. WAXS and 
STAR shall, as promptly as practicable after receipt thereof, provide the other party copies of any 
written comments and advise the other party of any oral comments, with respect to the Joint Proxy 
StatementlProspectus received from the SEC. WAXS will provide STAR with a reasonable 
opportunity to review and comment on any amendment or supplement to the Registration Statement 
prior to filing such with the SEC. and will provide STAR with a copy of all such filings made with 
the SEC. Notwithstanding any other provision herein to the contrary, no amendment or supplement 
(including by incorporation by reference) to the Joint Proxy StatemenVProspectus or the Registration 
Statement shall be made without the approval of both parties. which approval shall not be 
unreasonably withheld or delayed; provided, that with respect to documents filed by a party which 
are incorpotated by reference in the Registration Statement or Joint Proxy StatemenVProspectus, this 
right of approval shall apply only with respect to information relating to the other party or its 
business. financial condition or results of operations. WAXS will use reasonable efforts to cause 
the Joint Proxy Statements/Prospectus to be mailed to WAXS's stockholders, and STAR will use 
reasonable efforts to cause the Joint Proxy StatementlProspectus to be mailed to STARS 
stockholders. in each case as promptly as practicable after the Registration Statement is declared 
effective under the Securities Act. WAXS shall also take any action (other than qualifying to do 
business in any jurisdiction in which it is not now so qualified or to file a general consent to service 
of process) required to be taken under any applicable state securities laws in connection with the 
issuance of WAXS Common Stock and STAR shall furnish all information concerning STAR and 
the holders of STAR Common Stock as may be reasonably requested in connection with any such 
action. Each party will advise the other party. promptly after it receives notice thereof. of the time 
when the Registration Statement has become effective. the issuance ofany stop order, the suspension 
ofthe qualification ofthe WAXS Common Stock issuable in connection with the Merger for offering 
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or sale in any jurisdiction. or any request by the SEC for amendment of the Joint Proxy 
StatementiProspectus or the Registration Statement. Ifat any time prior to the Effective Time any 
information relating to WAXS or STAR. or any oftheir respective aftiliates. officers or directors. 
should be discovered by WAXS or STAR which should be set forth in an amendment or supplement 
to any of the Registration Statement or the Joint Proxy StatementiProspectus so that any of such 
documents would not include any misstatement of a material fact or omit to state any material fact 
necessary to make the statements therein. in light ofthe circumstances under which they were made. 
not misleading. the party which discovers such information shall promptly notify the other party 
hereto and. to the extent required by law. rules or regulations. an appropriate amendment or 
supplement describing such information shall be promptly tiled with the SEC and disseminated to 
the stockholders of WAXS and STAR. 

(b) Subject to Section 5.4, STAR shall. as promptly as reasonably practicable 
following the execution ofthis Agreement, duly take all lawful action to call, give notice of. convene 
and hold a meeting of its stockholders (the "STAR Stockholders Meeting ") (which meeting the 
parties intend to be held no later than thirty (30) days following the date on which the Registration 
Statement has been declared effective by the SEC) for the purpose of obtaining the Required STAR 
Vote with respect to the actions contemplated by this Agreement and shall take all lawful action to 
solicit the adoption of this Agreement by the Required STAR Vote. Subject to Section 5.4. the 
Board of Directors of STAR shall recommend adoption of this Agreement by the stockholders of 
STAR to the effect as set forth in Section 3.2(f), and shall not withdraw, modify or materially qualify 
in any manner adverse to WAXS such recommendation or take any action or make any statement 
in connection with the STAR Stockholders Meeting materially inconsistent with such 
recommendation (collectively, an "Adverse Chanee in the STAR Recommendation"); provided. 
however. that the foregoing shall not prohibit accurate disclosure of factual information regarding 
the business. financial condition or results of operations of WAXS or STAR or the fact that an 
Acquisition Proposal has been made, the identity of the party making such proposal or the material 
terms of such proposal (provided. that the Board of Directors of STAR does not withdraw, modify 
or materially qualify in any manner adverse to WAXS its recommendation) in the Registration 
Statement or the Joint Proxy StatemenVProspectus, to the extent such information, facts, identity or 
terms is required to be disclosed therein under applicable law. 

(c) WAXS shall, as promptly as reasonably practicable following the execution 
of this Agreement, duly take all lawful action to call. give notice of, convene and hold a meeting of 
its stockholders (the "WAXS Stockholders Meeting") (which meeting the parties intend to be held 
no later than thirty (SO) days following the date on which the Registration Statement has been 
declared effective by the SEC) for the purpose of obtaining the Required WAXS Vote with respect 
to the transactions contemplated by this Agreement and shall take all lawful action to solicit the 
approval of the transactions contemplated hereby by the Required WAXS Vote. The Board of 
Directors of WAXS shall recommend approval of the transactions contemplated hereby by the 
stockholders of WAXS to the effect as set forth in Section ;.l(f), and shall not withdraw. modify or 
materially qualify in any manner adverse to STAR such recommendation or take any action or make 
any statement in connection with the WAXS Stockholders Meeting materially inconsistent with 
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such recommendation: provided. however. that the foregoing shall not prohibit accurate disclosure 
of factual information regarding the business. financial condition or operations of WAXS or STAR. 

Access to Information. Upon reasonable notice. eachofSTAR and WAXS shall (and 
shall cause its Subsidiaries to) afford to the officers. employees. accountants. counsel. financial 
advisors and other representatives of the other party hereto reasonable access during normal business 
hours. during the period prior to the Effective Time. to all its properties. books. contracts. 
commitments. records. officers and employees and. during such period. each of STAR and WAXS 
shall (and shall cause its Subsidiaries to) furnish promptly to the other party hereto (a) a copy ofeach 
report. schedule. registration statement and other document filed. published. announced or received 
by it during such period pursuant to the requirements of federal or state securities laws. as applicable 
(other than documents which such party is not permitted to disclose under applicable law). and (b) 
consistent with its legal obligations. all other information concerning it and its business. properties 
and personnel as such other party may reasonably request; provided. however. that either STAR or 
WAXS may restrict the foregoing access to the extent that any law. treaty, rule or regulation of any 
Governmental Entity applicable to such party requires such party or its Subsidiaries to restrict access 
to any properties or information. The parties will hold any such information which is non-public in 
confidence to the extent required by, and in accordance with. the provisions of the Confidentiality 
Agreement, dated December 17, 1999. between STAR and WAXS (the “ConfidentialiQ 
Aereement”). Any investigation by WAXS or STAR shall not affect the representations and 
warranties made herein of STAR or WAXS, as the case may be. 

5.2 

5.3 Reasonable Efforts. 

(a) Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, each party will use 
reasonable efforts to take, or cause to be taken, all actions and to do, or cause to be done. all things 
necessary. proper or advisable under applicable laws and regulations to consummate the Merger and 
the other transactions contemplated by this Agreement as soon as practicable after the date hereof, 
including (i) preparing and tiling as promptly as practicable all documentation to effect all necessary 
applications, notices. petitions, filings, and other documents and to obtain as promptly as practicable 
all consents, waivers, licenses, orders, registrations, approvals, permits and authorizations necessary 
or advisable to be obtained from any third party andor  any Governmental Entity in order to 
consummate the Merger or any of the other transactions contemplated by this Agreement and (ii) 
taking all reasonable steps as may be necessary to obtain all such material consents, waivers, 
licenses. registrations, permits, authorizations. tax rulings. orders and approvals. The parties each 
shall keep the other apprised of the status of matters relating to completion of the transactions 
contemplated hereby, including promptly furnishing the other with copies of notices ’or other 
communications received by it or any of its Subsidiaries or affiliates from any Governmental Entity 
or third party with respect to the Merger or any of the other transactions contemplated by this 
Agreement. in each case. to the extent permitted by law or regulation or any applicable 
confidentiality agreements existing on the date hereof. 

(b) Promptly following execution of this Agreement, STAR and WAXS shall 
promptly prepare and tile any required notifications with the United States Department of Justice and 
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the Federal Trade Commission as required by the Hart-Scott-Rodino Antitrust lmprovrments Act 
of 1976. as amended (the "HSR Act"). The parties shall cooperate with each other in connection 
with the preparation of such notifications and related matters. including sharing information 
concerning sales and ownership and such other information as may be needed to complete such 
notification. and providing a copy of such notifications to the other prior to filing: provided. that 
WAXS and STAR shall have the right to redact any dollar revenue information from the copies.of 
such notifications provided to the other parties. The parties shall keep all information about the 
other obtained in connection with the preparation of such notification confidential pursuant to the 
terms of the Confidentiality Agreement. Each Person shall pay the filing fee required under the 
regulations promulgated pursuant to the HSR Act with respect to its own filing thereunder. 

5.4 Acauisition ProDosals. Without the prior written consent of WAXS. pending the 
Effective Time or earlier termination of this Agreement pursuant to Section 7.1. STAR agrees that 
neither it nor any of i ~ s  Subsidiaries shall. and that it shall use its reasonable efforts to cause its 
employees. officers. directors, affiliates, agents and representatives (including any investment 
banker. financial advisor. attorney or accountant retained by any of them) not to, directly or 
indirectly. initiate. solicit. encourage or knowingly facilitate (including by way of furnishing 
information or engaging in discussions or negotiations) any inquiries or the making of any proposal 
or offer with respect to a merger, reorganization, share exchange, consolidation. business 
combination, recapitalization. liquidation, dissolution or similar action involving STAR. or any 
purchase or sale of a material portion of the assets of (including stock of Subsidiaries) of STAR, 
taken as a whole, or any purchase or sale of, or tender or exchange offer for, a material portion of 
the equity securities of STAR (any such proposal or offer being hereinafter referred to as an 
"Acauisition Prowsal"). STAR further agrees that neither it nor any of its Subsidiaries shall. and 
that it shall use its reasonable efforts to cause it and its Subsidiaries' officers, directors, affiliates. 
employees, agents and representatives (including any investment banker, financial advisor, attorney 
or accountant retained by it or any of its Subsidiaries) not to, directly or indirectly, have any 
discussion with or provide any confidential information or data to any Person relating to an 
Acquisition Proposal. or engage in any negotiations concerning an Acquisition Proposal, or 
knowingly facilitate any effort or attempt to make or implement an Acquisition Proposal or accept 
an Acquisition Proposal. STAR agrees that it and its Subsidiaries will, and will cause its officers. 
directors, affiliates, employees, agents and representatives to, immediately cease and cause to be 
terminated any activities. discussions or negotiations existing as of the date of this Agreement with 
any parties conducted heretofore with respect to any Acquisition Proposal. STAR agrees that it will 
promptly inform its directors, officers, affiliates. key employees. agents and representatives of the 
obligations undertaken in this Section 5.4. Notwithstanding anything contained in this Section 5.4 
or otherwise in this Agreement to the contrary. STAR or its Board of Directors shall be +rmitted 
to (A) in response to an unsolicited bona fide written Acquisition Proposal by any Person. 
recommend approval of such an unsolicited bona fide written Acquisition Proposal to its 
stockholders or effect an Adverse Change in the STAR Recommendation or (B) engage in any 
discussions or negotiations with. or provide any information to. any person in response to an 
unsolicited bona fide written Acquisition Proposal by any such Person, if and only to the extent that, 
in any such case as is referred to in clause (A) or (B). ( i )  the STAR Stockholders Meeting shall not 
have occurred. (ii) its Board of Directors (x) in the case of clause (A) above. concludes in good faith 
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that such Acquisition Proposal constitutes a Superior Proposal (as detined in Section 8.12) and 
terminates this Agreement pursuant to Section 7.1 (h)  or ( y )  in the case of clause ( B )  abo\e 
concludes in sood faith that such Acquisition Proposal could reasonably be expected to result in a 
Superior Proposal, ( i i i )  prior to providing any information or data to any Person in Connection with 
an Acquisition Proposal by any such Person. its Board of Directors receives from such Person an 
executed confidentiality agreement containing confidentiality terms at least as stringent as those 
contained in the Confidentiality Agreement. and (iv) prior to providing any information or data to 
any Person or entering into discussions or negotiations with any such Person regarding such 
Acquisition Proposal. its Board of Directors notifies WAXS promptly of such inquiries. proposals 
or offers received by, any such information requested from, or any such discussions or negotiations 
sought to be initiated or continued with. any of its representatives indicating, in connection with such 
notice. the name of such Person and the material terms and conditions of any inquiries. proposals 
or offers. STAR agrees that it will promptly keep WAXS informed of the status and terms of any 
such proposals or offers and the status and terms of any such discussions or negotiations. STAR 
agrees that it will. and will cause its officers. directors and representatives to, immediately cease and 
cause to be terminated any activities, discussions or negotiations existing as of the date of this 
Agreement with any parties conducted heretofore with respect to any Acquisition Proposal. STAR 
agrees that it will promptly inform its directors, officers. key employees, agents and representative 
ofthe obligations undertaken in this Section 5.4. Nothing in this Section 5.4 shall (x) permit STAR 
or WAXS to terminate this Agreement (except as specifically provided in Article VI1 hereof) or (y) 
affect any other obligation of STAR or WAXS under this Agreement. 

5.5 Fees and Exoenses. All Expenses incurred in connection with this Agreement and 
the transactions contemplated hereby shall be paid by the party incurring such Expenses. AS used 
in this Agreement. "Exoenses" includes all out-of-pocket expenses (including all fees and expenses 
of counsel. accountants. investment bankers, experts and consultants to a party hereto and its 
affiliates) incurred by a party or on its behalf in connection with or related to the authorization. 
preparation, negotiation, execution and performance of this Agreement and the transactions 
contemplated hereby. 

5.6 Public Announcements. Neither WAXS nor STAR shall. without the prior consent 
of the other party, issue a press release or any other public statement with respect to this Agreement 
or the transactions contemplated hereby except pursuant to a joint communications plan. unless 
otherwise required by applicable law or by obligations pursuant to any listing agreement with, or 
rules of. any securities exchange. in which case the parties shall use reasonable efforts to consult 
with each other before issuing any press release or otherwise making any public statement with 
respect to this Agreement or the transactions contemplated hereby. 

5.7 m. So long as WAXS Common Stock is quoted on the Nasdaq or listed on any 
national securities exchange. WAXS. prior to the Effective Time, will cause to be quoted or listed. 
upon official notice of issuance. and keep quoted or listed on such system or exchange. all WAXS 
Common Stock issuable pursuant to Article I hereof. 
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5.8 Termination ofTax Sharing Aereement. As ofthe Effective Time. STAR shall cause 
all Tax Sharing Agreements to which STAR or any of its Subsidiaries is a party to be terminated and 
ofno further forceandeffectafterthe EffectiveTime. thereby extinguishing any rightsorobligations 
of any party thereunder. 

5.9 Manaeement Services. Subject to obtaining any necessary regulatory or third party 
consents and to the extent permitted under applicable law, WAXS and STAR intend to enter into a 
management agreement pursuant to which WAXS will provide. under the supervision and direction 
ofthe STAR board ofdirectors. certain management services to STAR. Neither party shall have any 
obligation under this Section 5.9 and the provision of the foregoing services shall be subject to the 
negotiation o fa  definitive agreement satisfactory to each of WAXS and STAR in its sole discretion. 

WAXS shall take all appropriate action such that. 
immediately following the Effective Time. and without further action by WAXS, one ( I )  designee 
of STAR shall be elected to the Board of Directors of WAXS. Such STAR designee shall be 
Christopher E. Edgecomb, or such other person designated by STAR and agreed to by WAXS prior 
to the Effective time. 

5.10 New Director of WAXS. 

5.1 1 Further Assurances. At and after the Effective Time, the officers and directors of the 
Surviving Corporation will be authorized to execute and deliver. in the name and on behalfof STAR 
or Merger Sub, any deeds, bills of sale, assignments or assurances and to take and do, in the name 
and on behalf of STAR or Merger Sub. any other actions and things to vest, perfect or confirm of 
record or otherwise in the Surviving Corporation any and all rights. properties. or assets acquired or 
to be acquired by the Surviving Corporation as a result of, or in connection with, the Merger. 

5.12 Directors‘ and Officers’ Indemnification and Insurance. 

(a) From the Effective Time through the sixth (6’h) anniversary of the date on 
which the Effective Time occurs, WAXS shall indemnify and hold harmless each present (as of the 
Effective Time) or former officer or director of STAR and its Subsidiaries (the “Indemnified m), against all claims, losses. liabilities. damages. judgments, fines and reasonable fees, costs 
and expenses, including attorneys’ fees and disbursements (collectively, “Costs”), incurred in 
connection with any claim, action. suit. proceeding or investigation, whether civil, criminal. 
administrative or investigative, arising out of or pertaining to (i) the fact that the Indemnified Party 
is or was an officer or director of STARor any of its Subsidiaries or (ii) matters existing or occurring 
at or prior to the Effective Time (including this Agreement and the transactions and actions 
contemplated hereby), whether asserted or claimed prior to. at or after the Effective Time. to the 
fullest extent permitted under applicable law; provided that no Indemnified Party may settle any such 
claim without the prior approval of WAXS (which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld or 
delayed). Each Indemnified Party will be entitled to advancement of expenses incurred in the 
defense’of any claim. action, suit, proceeding or investigation from WAXS within ten (1 0) business 
days of receipt by WAXS from the Indemnified Party of a request therefor; provided that any person 
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to whom expenses are advanced provides an undertaking. to the extent required by the DGCL. to 
repay such advances if it is ultimately determined that such person is not entitled to indemnitication. 

WAXS shall maintain. at no expense to the beneficiaries, in effect for six 
years from the Effective Time the current policies of the directors' and officers' liability insurance 
maintained by STAR with respect to matters existing or occurring at or prior to the Effective Time 
(including the transactions contemplated by this Agreement); provided that WAXS may substitute 
therefor policies of at least the same coverage containing terms and conditions which are not 
materially less advantageous to any beneficiary thereot and provided. further,that in no event shall 
WAXS be required to pay annual premiums for such insurance in excess of 125% of the annual 
premiums currently paid by STAR for such insurance. 

(b) 

(c) Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, if any claim. action. suit. 
proceeding or investigation (whether arising before. at or after the Effective Time) is made against 
any Indemnified Party. on or prior to the sixth (6Ih) anniversary of the Effective Time. the provisions 
of this Section 5.12 shall continue in effect until the final disposition of such claim. action. suit. 
proceeding or investigation. 

(d) The covenants contained in this Section 5.12 are intended to be for the benefit 
of. and shall be enforceable by, each of the Indemnified Parties and their respective heirs and legal 
representatives and shall not be deemed exclusive ofany other rights to which an Indemnified Party 
is entitled. whether pursuant to law, contract or otherwise. 

(e) In the event that the Surviving Corporation or any of its successors or assigns 
(i)  consolidates with or merges into any other Person and shall not be the continuing or surviving 
corporation or entity of such consolidation or merger or (ii) transfers or conveys all or substantially 
all of its properties and assets to any Person. then, and in each such case. proper provision shall be 
made so that the successors or assigns of the Surviving Corporation or the purchaser of such 
properties and assets shall succeed to the obligations set forth in this Section 5.12. 

5.13 Confidentiality. The parties each agree that the Confidentiality Agreement shall 
continue in full force and effect until the Effective Time. and if this Agreement is terminated or if 
the Merger is not consummated for any reason whatsoever, such Confidentiality Agreement shall 
thereafter remain in full force and effect in accordance with its terms. 

5.14 Comdiance with Dissenters' Rights Statute. STARshall comply with all procedures 
and requirements applicable to it under Section 262 of the DGCL. 

5.15 Interim Financing. The parties have agreed that WAXS will make available up to 
%25,000.000 in secured financing to STAR and up to $10.000,000 in secured financing to STAR's 
subsidiary, STAR Telecommunications GmbH. (collectively. the "lnterim Financing") pursuant to 
the terms of the Loan Documents (as defined below). The Interim Financing will mature at the 
earlier of one year from the date hereof and ninety (90) days after any termination ofthis Agreement 
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(other than a termination due to STAR's breach or default'under this Agreement which will result 
in the Interim Financing becoming immediately due and payable). The Interim Financing will be 
made pursuant to. and subject to the finalization of. appropriate loan and security documents (the 
"Loan Documents") substantially in the form of. and as contemplated by. the draft Loan Documents 
distributed to STAR on or prior to the date hereof. 

ARTICLE VI 

CONDITIONS PRECEDENT 

6.1 Conditions to Each Pam's Oblieation to Effect the Mereer. The respective 
obligations of STAR and WAXS to effect the Merger are subject to the satisfaction or waiver on or 
prior to the Closing Date of the following conditions: 

(a) HSR Act. The waiting period (and any extension thereot) applicable to the 
Merger under the HSR Act shall have been terminated or shall have expired. 

(b) Stockholder ADoroval. WAXS shall haveobtainedthe Required WAXS Vote 
in connection with the approval of this Agreement and the Merger and STAR shall have obtained 
the Required STAR Vote in connection with the approval of this Agreement and the Merger. 

(c) Reeistration Statement. The Registration Statement shall have been declared 
effective by the SEC under the Securities Act. No stop order suspending the effectiveness of the 
Registration Statement shall have been issued by the SEC and no proceedings for that purpose shall 
have been initiated or, to the Knowledge of WAXS or STAR, threatened by the SEC. 

6.2 Additional Conditions to Obligations of WAXS. The obligations of WAXS to effect 
the Merger are subject to the satisfaction of, or waiver by WAXS. on or prior to the Closing Date 
of the following conditions: 

. (a) Remesentations and Warranties. Each of the representations and warranties 
of STAR set forth in this Agreement shall be true and correct as of the date of this Agreement and 
as of the Closing Date as though made on and as of the Closing Date (except to the extent in either 
case that such representations and warranties speak as of another date, in which case any such 
representations and warranties shall be true and correct as of such date), except where any failures 
to be true and correct would not have a Material Adverse Effect on WAXS or the Surviving 
Corporation. and WAXS shall have received a certificate of the chiefexecutive officer and'the chief 
financial officer of STAR to such effect. 

(b) Performance of Oblieations of STAR. STAR shall have performed or 
complied in all material respects with all material agreements and covenants required to be 
performed by it under this Agreement at or prior to the Closing Date. and WAXS shall have received 
a certificate of the chief executive officer and the chief financial officer of STAR to such effect. 
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(c) Consentsand ADDrovak. Other than the filing provided for under Section I .:. 
all consents. approvals and actions of. filings with and notices to any Governmental Entity required 
to consummate the Merger and the other transactions contemplated hereby. or of any other third 
party required of STAR or any of its Subsidiaries to consummate the Merger and the other 
transactions contemplated hereby. the failure ofwhich to be obtained or taken would have a Material 
Adverse Effect on WAXS or the Surviving Corporation. shall have been obtained: provided. 
however. that the provisions of this Section 6 . 3 ~ )  shall not be available to WAXS. if  its failure to 
fulfill its obligations pursuant to Section 5.3 shall have been the cause of. or shall have resulted in. 
the failure to obtain such consent or approval. 

(d) No Material Chanee. STAR and its Subsidiaries. taken as a whole. shall not 
have suffered, since the date hereof, a Material Adverse Effect. other than any change. circumstance 
or effect relating ( i )  to the economy or financial markets in general, (ii) in general to the industries 
in which STAR operates and not specifically relating to STAR or (iii) the trading price of STAR 
Common Stock. 

(e) Ooinion of Counsel to STAR. WAXS shall have received from Riordan & 
McKinzie an opinion. dated the Closing Date, in form and substance reasonably satisfactory to 
WAXS. 

(f) No Iniunctions or Restraints: Illeeality. No laws shall have been adopted or 
promulgated. and no temporary restraining order. preliminary or permanent injunction or other order 
issued by a court or other Governmental Entity ofcompetent jurisdiction shall be in effect ( i )  having 
the effect of making the Merger illegal or otherwise prohibiting consummation of the Merger or 
(ii) which otherwise would have a Material Adverse Effect on WAXS or the Surviving Corporation: 
provided. however. that the provisions of this Section 6.2(f) shall not be available to WAXS if its 
failure to fulfill its obligations pursuant to Section 5.3 shall have been the cause of. or shall have 
resulted in any such order or injunction. 

(g) Dissenters' Rights. STAR shall have complied with all procedures and 
requirements applicable to it under Section 262 of the DGCL. the period for exercising dissenters' 
rights of appraisal pursuant to the DGCL in connection with the Merger shall have expired. and 
holders of less than one percent (1%) ofthe shares of STAR Common Stock issued and outstanding 
immediately priorto the Closing shall have exercised such dissenters' rights ofappraisal, and WAXS 
shall have received a certificate from an officer of STAR to all such effects. 

(h) Sale of PT-1. STAR shall hace consummated the sale of the capital stock of 
PT-1 Communications. Inc. ("PT-I"), or the assets of PT-I on a substantially equivalent basis. for 
Net PT-I Sale Proceeds (as defined in Section 8.12 ) of at least $150.000,000 pursuant to an 
a p e m e n t  in form and substance reasonably satisfactory to WAXS (the "PT-1 Sale"): provided. 
however. if ( i )  the PT-1 Sale has not been consummated prior to the Closing Date. (but STAR has 
entered into a definitive agreement, in form and substance satisfactory to WAXS, for the PT-I Sale) 
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and ( i i )  WAXS determines in its sole discretion to waive compliance with this Section 6 . 3 h )  and 
proceed with the Merger. then WAXS and STAR agree that in such event. they shall amend this 
Agreement to provide that (A) the formula used to determine the Exchange Ratio shall be modified 
by deleting "Z" therefrom and (B) a holder of STAR Common Stock and STAR Stock Options 
immediately prior to the Effective Time shall have a right to receive such holder's pro rata share of 
an aggregate number of additional "contingent" shares of WAXS Common Stock. if and when the 
PT-1 Sale is consummated pursuant to such definitive agreement (or. in the case of a holder of 
STAR Stock Option. when such option is exercised). equal to the PT-1 Excess Proceeds divided b. 
twenty (20)  (the "Contingent Shares") and that the provisions of any such amendment to this 
Agreement concerning the issuance of such Contingent Shares will satisfy the requirements of 
Section 3.03 of IRS Revenue Procedure 77-37. as it has been amplified and superseded. which 
established the circumstances under which the Internal Revenue Service previously issued advanced 
rulings on contingent stock arrangements in mergers intended to qualify as "reorganizations" under 
Section 368(a) of the Code. 

( i )  STAR shall have provided evidence satisfactory to WAXS that any and all 
obligations of STAR (or any of its affiliates) relating to or arising in connection with the China-U.S. 
Cable Network were fully satisfied by the reclamation of STAR'S capacity in such network and 
neither STAR nor any of its affiliates has any further obligation or liability with respect thereto. 
including without limitation payment ofthe amounts claimed and owing by STAR according to that 
letter dated January 11,2000 from Kou Yinsen, Director. CBP to Jim Kolsrud. 

6.3 Additional Conditions to Oblieations of STAR. The obligations of STAR to effect 
the Merger are subject to the satisfaction of, or waiver by STAR. on or prior to the Closing Date of 
the following additional conditions: 

(a) Remesentations and Warranties. Each of the representations and warranties 
of WAXS set forth in this Agreement shall be true and correct as of the date of this Agreement and 
as of the Closing Date as though made on and as of the Closing Date (except to the extent in either 
case that such representations and warranties speak as of another date, in which case any such 
representations and warranties shall be true and correct as of such date), except where any failures 
to be true and correct would not have a Material Adverse Effect on WAXS, and STAR shall have 
received a certificate of the chief executive officer and the chief financial officer of WAXS to such 
effect. 

(b) Performance of Oblieations of WAXS. WAXS shall have performed or 
complied in all material respects with all material agreements and covenants requited to be 
performed by it under this Agreement at or prior to the Closing Date. and STAR shall have received 
a certificate of the chief executive officer and the chief financial officer of WAXS to such effect. 

(c) Consents and Amrovals. Other than the filing provided for under Section 1.3. 
all consents. approvals and actions of, filings with and notices to any Governmental Entity required 
to consummate the Merger and the other transactions contemplated hereby, or of any other third 
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party required of WAXS or any of its Subsidiaries to consummate the Merger and the transactions 
contemplated hereby. the failure of which to be obtained or taken would have a Material Adverse 
Effect on WAXS. shall have been obtained: provided. however. that the provisions of this 
Section 6.3(c) shall not be available to STAR if its failure to fulfill any of its obligations pursuant 
to Section 5.3 shall have been the cause of. or shall have resulted in. the failure to obtain such 
consent or approval. 

(d) No Material Chanee. WAXS shall not have suffered. since the date hereof. 
a Material Adverse Effect. other than any change, circumstance or effect relating ( i )  to the economy 
or financial markets in general. (i i)  in general to the industries in which WAXS operates and not 
specifically relating to WAXS or (iii) the trading price of WAXS Common Stock. 

(e) ODinion of Counsel to WAXS. STAR shall have received from Long 
Aldridge & Norman LLP an opinion, dated the Closing Date, in form and substance reasonably 
satisfactory to STAR. 

(f) No Iniunctions or Restraints: Illepality. No laws shall have been adopted or 
promulgated. and no temporary restraining order. preliminary or permanent injunction or other order 
issued by a court or other Governmental Entity of competent jurisdiction shall be in effect (i) having 
the effect of making the Merger illegal or otherwise prohibiting consummation of the Merger or 
(i i)  which otherwise would have a Material Adverse Effect on WAXS after giving effect to the 
Merger: provided, however, that the provisions ofthis Section 6.3(g) shall not be available to STAR 
if its failure to fulfill its obligations pursuant to Section 5.3 shall have been the cause of. or shall 
have resulted in any such order or injunction. 

, 

(9) Exchanee Fund. An officer of the Exchange Agent shall have certified in 
writing to STAR that the deposit required to be made by WAXS into the Exchange Fund pursuant 
to Section 2.1 has been made in connection with the establishment thereof. 

ARTICLE VI1 

TERMINATION AND AMENDMENT 

7.1 Termination. This Agreement may be terminated at any time prior to the Effective 
Time. by action taken or authorized by the Board of Directors of the terminating party or parties: 

(a) 

(b) 

By mutual written consent of WAXS and STAR; 

By either WAXS or STAR. if the other party shall have failed to comply in 
any material respect with any of its material covenants or agreements contained in this Agreement. 
which failure to so comply has not been cured within ten (IO) business days following receipt by 
such other party of written notice of such failure to comply; provided. however, that if any such 
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breach is curable by the breaching party through the exercise of the breaching party's reasonable 
efforts and for so long as the breaching party shall be so using its reasonable efforts to cure such 
breach. the non-breaching party may not terminate this Agreement pursuant to this paragraph: and 
provided. further, that no party shall have the right to terminate this Agreement pursuant to this 
Section 7. I (  b) ifsuch party is then failing to comply in any material respect with any of its covenants 
or agreements contained in this Agreement; 

(c) By either WAXS or STAR. if there has been a breach by the other party of 
any representations or warranties, which breach has not been cured within ten ( I O )  business days 
following receipt by such other party of written notice of such failure to comply: provided. however. 
that if any such breach is curable by the breaching party through the exercise ofthe breaching party's 
reasonable efforts and for so long as the breaching party shall be so using reasonable efforts to cure 
such breach. the non-breaching party may not terminate this Agreement pursuant to this paragraph: 
and provided further. that this provision shall not apply to such breaches which would not have a 
Material Adverse Effect on WAXS or the Surviving Corporation; 

(d) By either STAR or WAXS. if the Effective Time shall not have occurred on 
or before September 30. 2000 (the "Termination Date"); provided. however. that the right to 
terminate this Agreement under this Section 7.l(d) shall not be available to any party whose action 
or failure to fulfill any obligation under this Agreement has been the cause of. or resulted in, the 
failure of the Effective Time to occur on or before the Termination Date and any such action or 
failure constitutes a breach of this Agreement by such party; 

(e) By either STAR or WAXS if any Governmental Entity (i) shall have issued 
an order, decree or ruling or taken any other action (which the parties shall have used their 
reasonable efforts to resist, resolve or lift, as applicable. in accordance with Section 5.3) permanently 
restraining, enjoining or otherwise prohibiting the transactions contemplated by this Agreement, and 
such order, decree. ruling, or other action shall have become final and nonappealable or (ii) shall 
have failed to issue an order, decree or ruling or to take any. other action (which order. decree, ruling 
or other action the parties shall have used their reasonable efforts to obtain, in accordance with 
Section 5.3), which. in the case of each of (i) and (ii) is necessary to fulfill the conditions set forth 
in Section 6.2(f) with respect to WAXS or Section 6313) with respect to STAR, and such denial of 
a request to issue such order, decree, ruling or take such other action shall have become final and 
nonappealable; provided, however, that the right to terminate this Agreement under this 
Section 7.l(e) shall not be available to any party whose action or failure to fulfill any obligation 
under this Agreement has been the cause of such action or inaction and any such action or failure 
constitutes a breach of this Agreement by such party: 

(0 By WAXS or STAR if the adoption of this Agreement by the stockholders of 
WAXS or the stockholders of STAR shall not have been obtained by reason of the failure to obtain 
the Required WAXS Vote or the Required STAR Vote. as applicable, in each case upon the taking 
of such vote at a duly held meeting of stockholders of WAXS or STAR. or at any adjournment 
thereof; 
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(g) By WAXS if the Board of Directors of STAR. prior to the Required STAR 
Vote. shall make an Adverse Change in the STAR Recommendation (other than in connection with 
STAR'S termination of this Agreement pursuant to Section 7.l(b)) or approve or recommend a 
Superior Proposal pursuant to Section 5.4 or shall resolve to take any such actions: 

( h )  By STAR. at any time prior to the Required STAR Vote upon three ( 3 )  
business days' prior notice to WAXS. if its Board of Directors shall have determined as of the date 
ofsuch notice that an Acquisition Proposal is a Superior Proposal; provided. however. that ( i )  STAR 
shall have complied with Section 5.4, (i i)  prior to such termination. STAR shall. if requested by 
WAXS in connection with a revised proposal by it. negotiate in good faith for such three (3) business 
day period with WAXS and (iii) the Board of Directors of STAR shall have concluded in good faith. 
as of the effective date of such termination. after taking into account any revised proposal by WAXS 
during such three (3) business day period. that an Acquisition Proposal is a Superior Proposal: and 
provided. further, that it shall be acondition to termination by STAR pursuant to this Section 7.l(h) 
that STAR shall have made the payment of the fee to WAXS pursuant to Section 7.2(b); 

(i) By WAXS. if (X) either STAR or any of its material Subsidiaries ( I )  
commences a voluntary case under any applicable bankruptcy, insolvency or other similar law now 
or hereafter in effect. or consents to the entry of an order for relief in an involuntary case under any 
such law. (2) consents to the appointment of or taking possession by a receiver, liquidator, assignee, 
custodian, trustee. sequestrator or similar official of STAR or any of its Subsidiaries or for all or a 
material portion ofthe property or assets of STAR or any of its Subsidiaries or (3) effects any general 
assignment for the benefit of creditors or (Y) a Governmental Entity having jurisdiction enters a 
decree or order for (a) relief in respect of STAR or any of its material Subsidiaries in an involuntary 
case under any applicable bankruptcy, insolvency or other similar law now or hereafter in effect. 
(b) appointment of a receiver, liquidator. assignee, custodian, trustee. sequestrator or similar official 
of STAR or any of its Subsidiaries or for all or a material portion of the property and assets of STAR 
or any of its Subsidiaries or (c) the winding up or liquidation of the affairs of STAR or any of its 
material Subsidiaries and, in each case, such decree or order shall remain unstayed and in effect for 
a period of 30 consecutive days; or 

(j) By WAXS ifthere has been an Event of Default under the Credit Agreement, 
of even date herewith, between WAXS and STAR. 

7.2 Effect of Termination. 

(a) In the event ofany termination of this Agreement byeither STARor WAXS. 
as provided in Section 7. I ,  this Agreement shall forthwith becomevoid and there shall be no liability 
or obligation on the part of WAXS or STAR or their respective officers or directors except with 
respect to Section 3.l(m), Section3.2(1). thesecondsentenceofSection5.2, Section5.5, Section5.6. 
this Section 7.2. and Article VIII, which provisions shall survive such termination and except that, 
notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this Agreement, neither WAXS nor STAR 
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shall be relieved or released from any liabilities or damages arising out of its breach of this 
Agreement: 

(b) Ifthis Agreement is terminated by STAR pursuant to Section 7.l(h). STAR 
shall. prior to such termination. pay to WAXS $14.000.000 in immediately available funds (the 
"Termination Fee"): 

(c)  If this Agreement is terminated by WAXS pursuant to Section 7. I(g). STAR 
shall, within three (3)  days following such termination. pay to WAXS the Termination Fee: and 

(d) Ifthis Agreement is terminated by WAXS or STAR pursuant to Section 7. I (  t) 
because STAR'S stockholders have failed to adopt this Agreement by the Required Star Vote and 
STAR enters into a definitive agreement with respect to a Business Combination within twelve (12) 
months following such termination, then STAR shall pay to WAXS the Termination Fee prior to or 
at the consummation thereof. 

7.3  Amendment. This Agreement may be amended by STAR and WAXS. by action 
taken or authorized by their respective Boards of Directors or representatives or authorized officers. 
at any time before or after approval of the matters presented in connection with the Merger by the 
stockholders of STAR and WAXS (including. without limitation. an amendment as described in 
Section 6.2(h)). but. after any such approval, no amendment shall be made which by law or in 
accordance with the rules of any relevant stock exchange or automatic quotations system requires 
further approval by such stockholders without such further approval. This Agreement may not be 
amended except by an instrument in writing signed on behalf of each of STAR and WAXS. 

7.4 Extension. Waiver. At any time prior to the Effective Time. the parties hereto. by 
action taken or authorized by their respective Boards of Directors, representatives or authorized 
officers. may, to the extent legally allowed. (i) extend the time for the performance of any of the 
obligations or other acts ofthe other parties hereto, (ii) waive any inaccuracies in the representations 
and warranties contained herein or in any document delivered pursuant hereto and (iii) waive 
compliance with any of the agreements or conditions contained herein. Any agreement on the part 
of a party hereto to any such extension or waiver shall be valid only if set forth in a written 
instrument signed on behalf of such party. The failure of any party to this Agreement to assert any 
of its rights under this Agreement or otherwise shall not constitute a waiver of those rights. 
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ARTICLE VI11 

GENERAL PROVISIONS 

8.1 Non-Sunival of Reuresentations, Warranties and Agreements. None of the 
representations. warranties. covenants and other agreements in this Agreement or in any instrument 
delivered pursuant to this Agreement including any rights arising out of any breach of such 
representations, warranties. covenants and other agreements, shall survive the Effective Time. except 
for those covenants and agreements contained herein and therein that by their terms apply or are to 
be performed in whole or in part after the Effective Time and this Article VIII. 

8.2 Notices. All notices and other communications hereunder shall be in writing and 
shall be deemed duly given (a) on the date of delivery if delivered personally. or by telecopy or 
facsimile. upon confirmation of receipt, (b) on the first business day following the date of dispatch 
if delivered by a recognized next day courier service, or (c) on the tenth business day following the 
date of mailing if delivered by registered or certified mail return receipt requested. postage prepaid 
All notices hereunder shall be delivered as set forth below, or pursuant to such other instructions as 
may be designated in writing by the party to receive such notice: 

(a) If to WAXS or Merger Sub, to: 

World Access, Inc. 
Resurgens Plaza, Suite 2210 
945 East Paces Ferry Road 
Atlanta. Georgia 30326 
Facsimile No.: (404) 233-2280 
Attention: John D. Phillips 

with a copy to 

Long Aldridge & Norman LLP 
303 Peachtree Street. Suite 5300 
Atlanta, Georgia 30308 
Facsimile No.: (404) 527-4198 
Attention: H. Franklin Layson 
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(b) If to STAR to: 

STAR Telecommunications. lnc. 
723 East De La Guerra 
Santa Barbara. California 93 101 
Facsimile No.: (805) 884-1 I37 
Attention: Christopher E. Edgecomb 

with a copy to 

Riordan & McKinzie 
Twenty-Ninth Floor 
300 South Grand Avenue 
Los Angeles. California 90071 
Facsimile No.: (213) 229-8550 
Attention: Richard J. Welch 

8.3 Intemretation. When areference is made in this Agreement to Sections. Exhibits. the 
WAXS Disclosure Schedule or the STAR Disclosure Schedule. such reference shall be to a Section 
of or Exhibit or schedule to this Agreement unless otherwise indicated. The table of contents and 
headings contained in this Agreement are for reference purposes only and shall not affect in any way 
the meaning or interpretation of this Agreement. Whenever the words "include". "includes" or 
"including" are used in this Agreement. they shall be deemed to be followed by the words "without 
limitation". All Exhibits. the WAXS Disclosure Schedule and the STAR Disclosure Schedule are 
incorporated herein and made a part hereof. 

Countemarts. This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, all of 
which shall be considered one and the same agreement and shall become effective when one or more 
counterparts have been signed by each of the parties and delivered to the other party. it being 
understood that both parties need not sign the same counterpart. 

Entire Aereement: No Third Partv Beneficiaries. 

(a) 

8.4 

8.5 

This Agreement and the Confidentiality Agreement constitute the entire 
agreement and supersede all prior agreements and understandings, both written and oral. including. 
without limitation, that certain Letter of Intent. dated December 17. 1999, between WAXS and 
STAR. among the parties with respect to the subject matter hereof. 

(b) This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure solely to the benefit ofeach 
party hereto. and nothing in this Agreement, express or implied, is intended to or shall confer upon 
any other Person any right. benefit or remedy of any nature whatsoever under or by reason of this 
Agreement. except as provided for in Section 5.12. 
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8.6 Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed and construed in accordance \\ ith 
the laws of the State of Delaware (without giving effect to choice of law principles thereof). 

8.7 Severabilitv. If any term or other provision of this Agreement is invalid. illegal or 
incapable of being enforced by any law or public policy. all other terms and provisions of this 
Agreement shall nevertheless remain in full force and effect so long as the economic or legal 
substance ofthe actions contemplated hereby is not affected in any manner materially adverse to any 
party. Upon such determination that any term or other provision is invalid. illegal or incapable of 
being enforced. the parties hereto shall negotiate in good faith to modify this Agreement so as to 
effect the original intent of the parties as closely as possible in an acceptable manner in order that 
the transactions contemplated hereby are consummated as originally contemplated to the greatest 
extent possible. 

8.8 Assienment. Neither this Agreement nor any of the rights, interests or obligations 
hereunder shall be assigned by any of the parties hereto. in whole or in part (whether by operation 
of law or otherwise). without the prior written consent of the other parties, and any attempt to make 
any such assignment without such consent shall be null and void. Subject to the preceding sentence. 
this Agreement will be binding upon. inure to the benefit of and be enforceable by the parties and 
their respective successors and assigns. 

8.9 Submission to Jurisdiction: Waivers. Each of WAXS and STAR irrevocably agrees 
that any legal action or proceeding with respect to this Agreement or for recognition and enforcement 
of any judgment in respect hereof brought by the other party hereto or its successors or assigns may 
be brought and determined in the Chancery or other Courts of the State of Delaware, and each of 
WAXS and STAR hereby irrevocably submits with regard to any such action or proceeding for itself 
and in respect to its property. generally and unconditionally, to the nonexclusive jurisdiction of the 
aforesaid courts. Each of WAXS and STAR hereby irrevocably waives, and agrees not to assert. by 
way of motion, as a defense. counterclaim or otherwise, in any action or proceeding with respect to 
this Agreement. (i)  any right to trial by jury with respect to any action, suit or proceeding arising out 
of or relating to this Agreement, the Merger or any other transaction contemplated hereby, (i i)  any 
claim that it is not personally subject to the jurisdiction of the above named courts for any reason 
other than the failure to lawfully serve process, (iii) that it or its property is exempt or immune from 
jurisdiction of any such court or from any legal process commenced in such courts (whether through 
service of notice, attachment prior to judgment, attachment in aid of execution of judgment. 
execution ofjudgment or otherwise). and (iv) to the fullest extent permitted by applicable law, that 
(a) the suit. action or proceeding in any such court is brought in an inconvenient forum. (b) the venue 
of such suit. action or proceeding is improper and (c) this Agreement. or the subject matt& hereof. 
may not be enforced in or by such courts. 

8.  I O  Enforcement. The parties agree that irreparable damage would occur in the event that 
any of the provisions of this Agreement were not performed in accordance with their specific terms. 
It is accordingly agreed that the parties shall be entitled to specific performance of the terms hereof. 
this being in addition to any other remedy to which they are entitled at law or in equity. 
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8.1 I Headina. The headings contained in this Agreement are inserted for conrrnirncr 
only and do not constitute a part of this Agreement. 

8.12 Definitions. As used in this Agreement: 

(a) "beneficial ownershin" or "beneficiallv own" shall have the meaning under 
Section l3(d) of the Exchange Act and the rules and regulations thereunder. 

(b) "Board of Directors" means the Board of Directors of any specified Person 
and any committees thereof. 

(c) "Business Combination" means (i) a merger. reorganization, consolidation. 
share exchange, business combination. recapitalization, liquidation, dissolution or similar transaction 
involving a party as a result of which either (A) such party's stockholders prior to such transaction 
(by virtue of their ownership ofsuch party's shares) in the aggregate cease to own at least 65% of the 
voting securities of the entity surviving or resulting from such transaction (or the ultimate parent 
entity thereof) or. regardless of the percentage of voting securities held by such stockholders, if any 
Person shall beneficially own. directly or indirectly, at least 20% of the voting securities of such 
ultimate parent entity. or (B) the individuals comprising the board of directors of such party prior 
to such transaction do not constitute a majority of the board of directors of such ultimate parent 
entity, (ii) a sale, lease. exchange, transfer or other disposition of at least 50% of the assets of such 
party and its Subsidiaries, taken as whole, in a single transaction or a series of related transactions. 
or (iii) the acquisition. directly or indirectly. by a Person of beneficial ownership of 20% or more of 
the common stock of such party whether by merger, consolidation. share exchange. business 
combination, tender or exchange offer or otherwise. 

(d) "Dissenters' Shares" means shares of STAR Common Stock for which 
dissenter's rights of appraisal have been exercised pursuant to the DGCL. 

(f) 

"Exchanee Act" means the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. 

"w means United States generally accepted accounting principles. 

(9) "u or "Knowledee" means, with respect to any party, the knowledge 
of such party's executive oficers after reasonable inquiry. 

(h) "Material Adverse Effect" means, with respect to any entity, any change. 
circumstance or effect or any breach of the provisions of this Agreement that. individually or in the 
aggregate with all other changes. circumstances and effects or breaches, is or would reasonably be 
expected to be materially adverse to (i) the business. financial condition or results of operations of 
such entity and its Subsidiaries taken as a whole, or (ii) the ability of such entity (or the party owning 
such entity) to consummate the transactions contemplated by this Agreement. 
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( i )  

(j) 

"w means the National Market System ofthe NASDAQ Stock ivarket. 

"Net PT-I Proceeds" means the cash proceeds received by STAR at the 
consummation of the PT-I Sale. net of all Taxes. fees. expenses and costs incurred in connection 
with the PT-I Sale. including. without limitation: 

fees or expenses for investment banking or other financial services; 

agency, brokerage, finder's or other similar fees or commissions; 

legal, accounting, consulting or other professional fees or expenses; 

the cost of any remedial or corrective actions or measures; 

the costs associated with the transfer or termination of any PT-I 

the costs of any right or obligation the vesting of which is accelerated 

(k) "Person" means an individual, corporation, limited liability company. 
partnership. association. trust, unincorporated organization, other entity or group (as defined in the 
Exchange Act). 

(I) "Pre-Closing Price" means the closing price of WAXS Common Stock as 
reported on the Nasdaq for the trading day (in which such shares are traded on the Nasdaq) ending 
at the close of trading on the second (2") trading day preceding the Closing. 

(m) "PT-1 Excess Proceeds" means the Net PT-1 Proceeds in excess of 
6 150.000,OOO. 

(n) 

(0) 

(p) 

"E means the Securities and Exchange Commission. 

"Securities Act" means the Securities Act of 1933, as amended. 

"Subsidiary", when used w-ith respect to any party means any corporation or 
other organization, whether incorporated or unincorporated, (i) of which such party or any other 
Subsidiary of such party is ageneral partner (excluding partnerships, the general partnership interests 
of which held by such party or any Subsidiary of such party do not have a majority of the voting 
interests in such partnership) or (ii) at least a majority of the securities or other interests of which 
having by their terms ordinary voting power to elect a majority of the,Board of Directors or others 
performing similar functions with respect to such corporation or other organization is directly or 
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indirectly owned or controlled by such party or by any one or more of its Subsidiaries. or by such 
pany and one or more of its Subsidiaries. 

(4) "Sumxior Prooosal" means a written proposal made by a Person unaffiliated 
with STAR which is for (I) (i) a merger. reorganization. consolidation. share exchange. business 
combination. recapitalization. liquidation. dissolution or similar transaction involving STAR as a 
result of which either (A) STARS stockholders prior to such action (by virtue of their ownership of 
STAR'S shares) in the aggregate cease to own at least 50% of the voting securities of the entity 
surviving or resulting from such transaction (or the ultimate parent entity thereof) or (B) the 
individuals comprising the board of directors of STAR prior to such transaction do not constitute a 
majority of the board of directors of such ultimate parent entity, (ii) a sale, lease, exchange. transfer 
or other disposition of at least 50% of the assets of STAR and its Subsidiaries. taken as a whole. in 
a single transaction or a series of related transactions, or (iii) the acquisition. directly or indirectly. 
by a Person of beneficial ownership of 50% or more of the common stock of STAR whether by 
merger, consolidation. share exchange, business combination, tender or exchange offer or otherwise. 
and which is (11) otherwise on terms which the Board of Directors of STAR in good faith concludes 
(after consultation with its financial advisors and outside legal counsel), taking into account among 
other things. all legal. financial, regulatory and other aspects of the proposal and the Person making 
the proposal, (i) would. if consummated, result in a transaction that is more favorable to its 
stockholders (in their capacities as stockholders), from a financial point of view, than the 
transactions contemplated by this Agreement and (ii) is reasonably capable of being completed. 

(r) "Tax" - (and, with correlative meaning, "&&' shall mean: (i) all taxes. 
charges. fees, levies or other assessments, however denominated, including any interest, penalties 
or other additions to tax that may become payable in respect thereof, imposed by any federal, 
territorial. state. local or foreign government or any agency or political subdivision of any such 
government. which taxes shall include. without limiting the generality of the foregoing, all income 
or profits taxes (including, but not limited to, federal income taxes and state income taxes), payroll 
and employee withholding taxes. unemployment insurance. social security taxes, sales and use taxes, 
ad valorem taxes, excise taxes, employer tax, estimated, severance, telecommunications, occupation. 
goods and'services. capital, profits, value added taxes. franchise taxes, gross receipts taxes, business 
license taxes, occupation taxes, real and personal property taxes, stamp taxes, environmental taxes, 
transfer taxes, workers' compensation, Pension Benefit Guaranty Corporation premiums and other 
governmental charges, and other obligations of the same or of a similar nature to any of the 
foregoing. which the Person is required to pay. withhold or collect; and (ii) any liability for the 
payment of any amounts described in clause (i) as a result ofbeing a successor to or transferee ofany 
individual or entity or a member of an affiliated. consolidated or unitary group for any period 
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(including pursuant to Treas. Reg. S I .  1502-6 or comparable provisions of state. local or foreign ta l  
law); and (i i i )  any liability for the payment ofamounts described in clause ( i )  or clause ( i i )  as a result 
ofany express or implied obligation to indemnify any Person or as a result of any obligations under 
agreements or arrangements with any Person. 

(s) "Tax Asset" means any net operating loss. net capital loss. investment tax 
credit. foreign tax credit. charitable deduction or any other credit or tax attribute which could reduce 
Taxes (including. without limitation. credits related to alternative minimum Taxes). 

(t) "Tax Return" shall mean all reports, estimates, declarations of estimated tax. 
information statements and returns (including any attached schedules) or similar statement relating 
to, or required to be tiled in connection with, any Taxes, including information returns or reports 
with respect to backup withholding and other payments to third parties. 

(u) "Tax Sharine Aereement" shall mean any and all existing Tax sharing 
agreements, or arrangements written or unwritten. express or implied, binding two or more Persons 
with respect to the payment of Taxes, including any agreements or arrangements which afford any 
other Person the right to receive any payment from one or more other Persons in respect to any Taxes 
or the benefit of any Tax Asset of one or more other Persons or require or permit the transfer or 
assignment of any income, revenue, receipts or gains. 

. 

[Signatures appear on following pagel 
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, W A X ,  Merger Sub and STAR haw c a w d  this hpresnicnr 
IO be signed by rheir respenive ofticm rhrrrunto duly authorized, all as of die dare first above 
winen. 

WORLD ACCESS, INC. 

By: 

O f i c n  

g&&: 

STAR TELECOMMU~WATJONS, MC. 

By: 
Name: 
Tide: 

MERGER SLJB: 

STI MERGER CO. 

By: 
Name: W. Tod Chmar 
Tide: President 



By: * 
pR.Gml SLB. 

s n  MEROERCO. 

. 
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Executive Profiles 

@ Access 

=JOHN D. “JACK” PHILLIPS, named Chief Executive 
)fftcer and President of World Access on December 16, 
998, following the acquisition of the company he was then 
:EO of, Resurgens Communications Group. Mr. Phillips 
vas elected Chairman of the Board on Mav 28. 1999. 

nown as Fuqua Industries, a $1.3 billion diversified 
iolding company, W i n g  on the NYSE. During his tenure, 
ie merged Actava with Metromedia International 
relecommmunications, Inc., and Orion Pictures Corporation 

to form Metromedia International Group (“MIG“), a $750 million market 
capitalization company. 

Mr. Phillips began his career in telecommunications in May, 1982 when he founded 
Transcall America (“TA”), a resale long distance telephone company. TA completed 
a reverse merger and acquired Advanced Telecommunications Corporation 
(“ATP), a zero plus and one plus telecommunications company, in lune 1983. Mr. 
Phillips built ATC from $20 million in sales to more than $160 million in revenue 
by 1988. Mr. Phillips was the architect of the three-way merger of RCG with 
Metromedia Communications Corporation and LDDS. This hansaction created the 
fourth largest long-distance company in the country, WorldCom, Inc. 

Mr. Phillips has successfully acquired or merged more than 150 companies and has 
completed more than 50 rounds of debt and public equity offerings. His hack record 
demonstrates his ability to assemble management teams capable of successfully 
competing within their respective industries and delivering strong shareholder 
returns. All of his companies have been publicly traded, with the exception of 
NGK. 

Mr. Phillips has been a director of World Access, Inc. since 1995. 

WALTER BURMEISTER, Founder and President of 
FaciliCom International, has more than 30 years experience 
in the telecommunications industry. Having founded 
FaciliCom in 1995, he was instrumental in developing this 
new entrant into one of the most well respected 
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international long distance providers in Europe. 

Prior to founding FaciliCorn, MI. Burmeister founded 
TMG, a telecommunications consulting firm, and he has 
served as its Chairman from 1992 to the present. Mr. 
Burmeister formerly served as Vice President and Chief 
Financial Officer of Bell Atlantic International, where he 

was responsible for overseeing business development in Central and South America, 
the Middle East and Africa, as well as managing the company's financial affairs. He 
also played key roles in Bell Atlantic's domestic business, serving as Vice President 
of Bell of Pennsylvania's and Diamond State Telephone's sales organizations, 
Assistant Vice President in charge of Information Systems Operations, heading the 
C&P Telephone Operations Staff, and in charge of developing network planning 
software. 

DENNIS E. BAY is the Chief Operating Officer of World Access, Inc., 
Telecommunications Group. In 1997, Mr. Bay joined Jack Phillips' team as Chief 
Operating Officer in the renovation of the carrier's carrier Cherry Communications 
(d/b/a Resurgens Communications Group). Mr. Bay is guiding World Access' 
strategy to establish footprints in markets that have the most intense international 

Mr. Bay has been an active participant in the telecommunications industry for over 
35 years. His resume includes AT&T United Telecom (Sprint) ATC (later merged 
with Microtel, a subsidiary of Alltel). In 1989, Mr. Bay worked for Central 
Corporation, a zero-plus operator/owner of pay phones in the states of Florida and 
Georgia, newly under Mr. Phillips' control. Mr. Phillips reorganized the company 
and renamed the entity Resurgens Communications Group, Inc. ("RCG"). In July 
1989, the Company acquired Southern Cellular Telecom, IN., a cellular franchisee 
of BellSouth and in February 1992, RCG acquired Corn Systems, Inc., a diversified 
telecommunications company engaged in direct dial and o p t o r  assisted long 
distance telephone services. By 1992, the combined companies, primarily providing 
one plus and zero plus long distance telephone services, had revenues of 
approximately $170 million. In 1993, RCG entered into a &-way merger with 
Metromedia Communications Corporation and LDDS, creating the fourth largest 
long-distance company in the country, WorldCom, Inc. 

traffic growth. 

FCI's chief o p t i n g  officer, has an 
ional telecommunications background 

corporate disciplines, including business 
f sales and marketing, finance, operations, 
and network inhastructure and planning. He 
nagement positions at such companies as 

ne, Sprint, GTE Corporation and E-Systems, 

ices to a number of international service providers and 
'gn PTTs (Post, Telephone &Telegraphy 
inistrations) on a variety of subjects, including market 

ong others. Most recently, Gerety provided consulting 

positioning, technical planning, resource requirements, 
business planning and interconnea licensing. 

At Sprint International/Global One, where he was Director of International Network 
Sales, Gerety was responsible for project development and implementation of both 
private and PlT-interconnected voice and data networks, as well as directing 
representatives and agents in the sale of those systems. With local partners, he 
established two new operating companies in the Middle Fast and Africa from initial 
market assessment through network launch. 
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Gerety also Served as Senior Market Development Manager and business 
Acquisition Manager at GTE, identifying new satellite-based telecom opportunities 
in Eastern Europe, CIS, the Middle East and Africa while managing day-to-day 
acquisition team activities. Additionally, he directed pricing and pursuit strategies 
and prepared out-year business, capital investment and allocation and strategic 
plans. Mr. Gerety holds MS and MBA degrees from the Florida lnstitute of 
Technology and is a graduate of the United States Military Academy. 

W. TOD CHMAR, Executive Vice President 
Tad C h a r  has served as an Executive Vice President of World Access, Inc. since 
December 1998 following World Access's acquisition of Cherry Communications 
Incorporated. Prior to that, Mr. Chmar became an Executive Vice President of 
Cherry Communications lncorporated d/b/a Resurgens Communications Group and 
of Cherry Communications U.K. Limited in October of 1997 when Jack Phillips 
became CEO. He also became a director of both corporations at that time. 

Mr. Chmar served as Senior Vice President of Metromedia International Group, Inc. 
from November 1995 through December 1996. Prior to that he was Senior Vice 
President of The Actava Group Inc. from 1994 through November 1995, when it 
merged with Orion Pictures Corporation and Metromedia International 
Telecommunications, Inc. to form Metmmedia International Group. In these roles, 
he has acted as John D. Phillips' right hand man. 

From January 1985 until September 1993, Mr. C h a r  was a partner in the law firm 
of Long, Aldridge & Norman, specializing in mergers and aquisitions and 
corporate finance. He began representing Mr. Phillips at Resurgens Communications 
Group, Inc. in 1990 and upon consummation of the merger of Resurgens, 
Metromedia Communications corporation and LDDS Communications, Inc., in 
September 1993, he joined Mr. Phillips as a business p m e r  to pursue business 
deals. 

MARK A. CERCEL, Chief Financial Officer 
Mark. Gergel joined the Company in April 1992 as Vice President and Chief 
Financial Officer. In December 1996, he was named an Executive Vice.President of 
the Company and in December 1998, he was elected a director of the Company. 
From 1983 until March 1992, Mr. Gergel held five positions of increasing 
responsibility with Federal-Mogul Corporation, a publicly-held manufacturer and 
distributor of vehicle parts, including International Accounting Manager, Assistant 
Corporate Controller, Manager of Corporate Development and Director of Internal 
Audit. Prior to joining Federal-Mogul, Mr. Gergel spent four years with the 
international accounting firm of Ernst & Young. Mr. Gergel is a Certified Public 
Accountant. 

ROBERT THEHIN, Managing Director of FCI Europe, has 
over twenty years oftelecommunications experience. His 
background includes extensive experience in international 
sales, marketing, operations and business development 
management as well as an engineering degree. As the 
Managing Director ofCable & Wireless in France, he was 
responsible for the development ofthe entire sales, 
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interconnection conditions. 

While at QST, a Paris-based company, Mr. Trehin was the Vice President, 
International and Strategy, where he was responsible for developing the European 
network of business partners and managing the company's worldwide subsidiaries. 
He led a team of high technology and market experts that launched a program for a 
new generation of high-speed multimedia advanced products. 

DIRECTORS 

John D. Phillips, Chairman and CEO 

Lawrence C. Tucker, General Partner of Brown Brothers Harriman 

Kirby J. Campbell, CEO of AHI, served as Treasurer, V.P. and as a director of 
Facilicom 

Dru A. Sedwick, served as Secretary, V.P. and as a director of Facilicom 

Bryan Cipletti, has served as a director of Facilicom and V.P. of Finance at AH1 

John P. Imlay, Chairman, Imlay Investments 

Carl E. Sanders, Chairman of Troutman Sanders, LLP and Governor of the state of 
Georgia (1963-1967) 

Stephen J. Clearman, Co-Founder of Geocapital Partners 

Massimo Prelz Oltmnonti, Managing Director of Gilbert Global Equity Partners, 
L.L.C 

John P. Rigas, Managing Partner of Zilkha Capital Partners L.P 

3/2/00 
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PART I 

FINANCIAL IN FORMAT ION 

I T F M  1 .  f OIISOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

WORLD ACCESS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS 
(IN THOUSANDS) 

<TABLE> 
<CAPTI ON> 

t 
<s> 

Current Assets 
ASSETS 

C a s h  arid equivalents . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Accourits receivable . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
InvenLories . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Deferred income taxes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Other current assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Total Current Assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Property and equipment . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Goodwill and other intangibles . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Other assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Total Assets . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

JUNE 30, 
1 9 9 9  

(UNAUDITED) 
<C> 

-__--_----- 

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 
gurrent Liabilities 

Short-term debt . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Accounts payable . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Other accrued liabilities ................................. 

Tot-a1 Current Liabilities ......................... 
Long-term debt . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Noncurrent liabilities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Total Liabilities. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

$ 98,996 
97,342 
45,216 
33,022 
21,907 

296,483 
62,325 

309,540 
24,798 

$ 693,146 

- - - - - - - - - 

- - - - - - - - - 

- ---____- _-____- _ _  

Stockholders' Equity 
Preferred stock . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Connrriin stock . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
CapiLL31 in excess of par value . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Fst - t~ . i i :w) l  ~ tec~i  deficit.. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

1 
4 4 8  

544 ,481  
1119,138)  

<C> 

$ 55 ,176  
70,485 
48 ,591  
37,185 
2 1 , 3 8 1  

232,818 
63,602 

298,780 
18 ,612  

$ 613,812 

- - - - - - - - - 

- - - - - - - - - 

- - ___-  - -- _ _ _ _ _ _  -- - 

_ _  
4 4 1  

472. 945 
( 1 1 2 , 8 0 3 )  
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<'-- .SI  <,rtI rdqrnent-->WORLD ACCESS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS 
(IN THOUSANDS, EXCEPT PER SHARE DATA) 

<S> 
Carrier service revenues .................................... 
( ipment sales . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Total Sales . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Cost of carrier services . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Cost of services network . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Cost of equipment sold ...................................... 
Amortization of acquired technology ......................... 

Total Cost of Sales . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Gross Profit . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Research and development . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Selling, general and administrative ......................... 
Amortization of goodwill . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
In-process research and development ......................... 
Restructuring and other charges ............................. 

Operating Income (Loss) ............................ 
nterest and other income ................................... 

erest expense . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  t - -  
Income (Loss) From Continuing Operations Before 
Income Taxes and Minority Interests... . . . . . . . . . . .  

Income taxes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Income (Loss) From Continuing Operations Before 
Minority Interests ............................... 

Minority interests in earnings of subsidiary . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Income (Loss) From Continuing Operations . . . . . . . . . . .  

Net income (loss) from discontinued operations . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Write-down of discontinued operations t o  net realizable 

value . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Net Income ( L o s s )  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

P i ~ , ~ ~ I * ~ i ~ i ~ : < l  :st \>,.I.: dividends.. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

12,224 9 ,338  17,150 ( 2 0 , 2 5 2 )  
5,952 3 ,721  9,357 5,906 

6,272 4,169 8,393 ( 2 7 , 6 9 0 )  
( 6 8 5 )  1,102 (6531 ( 4 0 )  
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WORLD ACCESS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 
(IN THOUSANDS) 

PREFERRED 
STOCK 

- - - - - - - - - 

<s> <C> -- Balance at January 1, 1999 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $ 
lJet and comprehensive net loss . . . . . . . . . . .  

Ysuance of preferred shares in private 
offering . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Issuance of preferred shares for 
acquisition of business . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Uividends  on preferred stock . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Release of escrowed shares for 

acqu i s i t . i on  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Issuance of shares for technology 

license . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
I s s u a n c e  of shares for options and 

warrants . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Tax benefit from option and warrant 

exercises . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Issuance of shares to 401K plan . . . . . . . . . .  

( 

. . .  

- - - - - - - - 
Bal.ance at June 3 0 ,  1999 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $ 1 _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _  ____---- 
</TABLE> 

1 

<PAGE> 5 
<!--EndFragment--> 

See notes to consolidated financial statements. 
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CAPITAL IN 
EXCESS OF 
PAR VALUE 

(UNAUDITED) 
<C> 

$472,945 

---------- 

47,750 

18 ,539  

2,824 

1 , 7 0 5  

479 

54 
185  

$544 ,481  
- - - - - - - - 

________  _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _  

ACCUMULATED 
D E F I C I T  _---------- 

<C> 
$ ( 1 1 2 , 8 0 3 )  

( 5 , 9 2 2 )  



<!--~tar~Fragment-->WORLD ACCESS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 
(IN THOUSANDS 

<s> 
Cash F l o w s  From Operating Activities: 

( 
Net loss . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
djustments to reconcile net loss to net cash from 
operating activities: 
Depreciation and amortization. ......................... 
Write-down of discontinued operations to net realizable 
value . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Income tax benefit from stock warrants and options . . . . .  
Special charges . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Minority interests in earnings of subsidiary . . . . . . . . . . .  
Provision f o r  bad debts ................................ 
Stock contributed to employee benefit plan . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Changes in operating assets and liabilities, net of 

Provision for inventory reserves ....................... 

effects from businesses acquired: 
Accounts receivable .................................. 
Inventories .......................................... 
Accounts payable ..................................... 
Other assets and liabilities.... ..................... 

Net Cash From Operating Activities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
<dsh Flows From Investing Activities: 

Acquisitions of businesses, net of cash acquired . . . . . . . . . .  
Proceeds from sales of assets ............................. 
Capitalization of software development costs... ........... 
Expenditures for property and equipment . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

Net Cash Used By Investing Activities. . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Cash Flows From Financing Activities: 
Net proceeds from sale of preferred stock . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Short-term borrowings ..................................... 
Principal payments under capital lease obligations . . . . . . . .  
Repayment of industrial revenue bond ...................... 
Proceeds from exercise of stock warrants and options . . . . . .  
I,onq-tcrm debt repayments . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
! ' L ' , L ' l  1 :s':ll,,,N.c c0st:s. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

SIX MONTHS ENDED 
JUNE 30, ___________-------- 

1 9 9 9  1998  

(UNAUDITED) 
_ _ _ _ _ - _ _  -------- 

<C> <C> 

$ (5 ,922 )  $ ( 2 7 , 7 3 1 )  

15,123 3,194 

13 ,662  _-  
54 4,222 _ _  40,434 _ _  1 , 5 3 2  

680 1 4 4  
1 ,453  

185  
316  

92 

(23,121)  (13 ,088)  
110.236) 19.294)  



[let Cash From Financing Activities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
[)ei:redse i n  Cash and Equivalents .......................... 
cash a n d  Equivalents at Beginning of Period . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
f :di t> and Equivalents at End of Period ..................... 

Supplemental Schedule of Noncash Financing and Investing 
P.c t I v 1 t i e s : 
Issuance of common stock for businesses acquired .......... 
Issuance of preferred stock for business acquired ......... 
Issuance of common stock for technology license 

agreements . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
Issuance of stock options for businesses acquired . . . . . . . . .  
C o n v e r s i o n  of note receivable to investment in AT1 . . . . . . . .  

< / T A R I , E >  

t 
< P A G E >  6 

See notes to consolidated financial statements. 
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$ 2,825 $ 33,397 _ _  
18,539 

1,710 -- 
-_ 8,360 _ _  4,485 

< ! --EndFragment--> 



< I  - - 5 i t u 1  1 i.'rayrrient-->ITEM 1: FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

S'rIiR TELECOMMUNICATIONS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS 

(In thousands, except f o r  share data) 

< s i  
Current Assets: 

d s h  arid cash equivalents ( 7  short-term investments 
Accounts and notes receivable, net 
Rec:eivable from related parties 
Other current assets 

Total current assets 

I,ong-Terrn Assets: 
Property and equipment, net 
Goodwill, net 
Other 

Total assets 

Current Liabilities: 

( Current portion of long-term obligations 

Revolving lines of credit 
?evolving line with stockholder 

Accounts payable 
Taxes payable 
Related party payable 
Accrued network cost 
Other accrued expenses 
Deferred revenue 

Total current liabilities 

Long-Term Lidbilities: 
Long-term obligations, net of current portion 
Other long-term liabilities 

Total long-term liabilities 

December 31, 
1 9 9 8  

<C> 

$ 47,297 
8 3 5  

1 0 0 , 2 3 5  
7 62 

4 3 , 5 8 1  

1 4 , 5 8 2  
2 , 4 2 6  

1 6 2 , 9 0 9  
1 , 9 2 0  

45 ,585  

227 ,422  
_ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _  

170 ,952  

1 0 . 9 8 9  
_ 339 ,907  

203 ,329  
2 7 , 5 5 1  

s 1 9 , 3 3 0  

1 0 , 6 5 2  
4 3 , 9 8 9  

1 , 6 4 0  
2,267 

51 ,262 
15 ,772 

1 , 1 0 0  

_ s 42 ,501  
2 .500 

15 ;  905 
1 5 3 , 5 3 0  

1 , 2 5 3  
119,366 

- 

27,784 
41 ,784 

404 ,623  

42 ,695  
51 ,725  

94 ,420  



. ~ L , , : : k i , ~ i u c : r s '  ,.. Equity: 
rorrmor: stock $.001 par value: 

{ . , ( I ~ I  t l o r m l  paid-in capital 
I ed conpensat ion 

i,,:r:urnulated other comprehensive income ( l o s s )  
l l < , t ~ t  receivable from stockholder 

I 

;,uti,orized - 100,000,000 shares 

i . .ccumu l d  t ed deficit 

Total stockholders' equity 

Total liabilities and stockholders' 

c /'! .L.l3l,k:, 

43 
207 ,466  

1 8 8  
- 

_ 
( 1 2 , 1 0 6 )  

1 9 5 , 5 9 1  

bet ,ccompanying notes to the condensed consolidated financial statements. 
( 

3 

( l JA( , t  

STAR TELECOMMUNICATIONS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS 

(In thousands, except per share data) 

<s; 
Keveriiic 
Operdtinij expenses: 

Cost of services 
Selling, general and 

Dupieciation and amortization 
Merger expense 

ddministrative expenses 

Income (loss) from operations 

58 
364,468 

( 3 ; 5 7 0 )  

1 , 7 3 1  
I R f n ,  

<C> 
$ 445,134 

378,212 

45,554 
8,892 

314 

432,972 
_______-_-------  

<C> 
$ 779,69<1 

67 6,2 1 .> 

1 1 8 , 4 0 (  
31, 35, 
1,87' 

________-_--. 

827,84 

12,162 ( 4 8 , 1 4 '  

176 3 , 2 3 6  .. 1.85 
, L , .  



p r C j v ~ s ~ o r ~  (benefit) for income taxes 

[ le t  lrlcollie (loss) 

Bas ic  incoriie (loss) per share 

[jiluted income ( l o s s )  per share 

</TAi j I .E> 

( see dccoiripanying notes to the condensed consolidated financial statements. 
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STAR TELECOMMUNICATIONS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 

CONUENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 
(In thousands) 

< S >  
Cash Flows  From Operating Activities: 

N e t  income (loss) 
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to 
net cash provided by operating activities: 

Uepreciati.on and amortization 
G d i r l  on sd le  of investment 
Interest on note discount 
Compensation expense relating to stock options 
Provision f o r  doubtful accounts 
Deferred income taxes 
Deferred compensation 
0' I . <  ? 

' , .  ' , ,  , , ! .  , , : ' : , t : l ' ;  .:~i\i ll0bilities net of effects from purchase of P T - 1 :  
, .  

(Unaudited) 
<C> <C> 

$ 6,064 $ ( 4 4 , 2 4 8 )  

8 , 8 9 2  

5 5  
30 

3, 952  
15111 

62  
1 5 )  

3 1 , 3 5 2  
1 1 , 2 9 2 )  - 

- 
1 6 , 3 1 7  

4 , 0 5 1  
- 
- 



~ c . c e ~ ' ~ ~ t l e  from related parties 
O t t l e r  assets 
n.ccr,urits  payable 
R e l a t e d  party payable 
~ccrued network cost 
Ott,er accrued expenses 
ije f e r r  ed revenue 
0 t her 1 I a bi 1 it i e s 

Net cash provided by operating activities 

cast) Flows F r o m  Investing Activities: 
Capital expenditures 
short-term investments 
Purchase of PT-1, net of cash acquired 
Pdyrnent to former shareholder of PT-1 
Proceeds from sale of investment 

(  her long-term assets 

Net cash used in investing activities 

- 
(10,201) 
15,196 

14,061 
_ 
- 

48 

285 

</TABLE> 

See accompanying notes to the condensed consolidated financial statements. 

S 

<PAGE; 

STAR TELECOMMUNICATIONS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 
(In thousands) 

<TABLE> 

Nine Months Ended 
September 30, -_____________________________  

1998 1999 

<s> 
Cash F lu \ws  F l o m  Financing Activities: 

B o r r o w i n c j s  under lines of credit 
R e p d y m i ~ n t s  under lines of credit 
B o r r o w i n g s  under revolving line of credit with stockholder 
Repayments under revolving line of credit with stockholder 
B o r r o w i n g s  under long-term debt 
Payments under long-term debt and capital lease obligations 
Issuance of common stock 
S t o c k  options exercised 
P J ; ~ i , > r , t  ii ~c:.:e.rcised 
,I .  , 

, . . I  : : : I .  . : ;  j i , l j  r.c.1 IviLies 

(Unaudited) 
<C> <C> 

1,000 - 

(1331 

11,084) 
144,711 
2,429 

274 
( 1 2 )  

- 

280,989 
(262,818) 

2,500 

700 
- 

i l l ,  193) - 
630 

6 
- 

- - - - - - - - 

( 4 6 5 )  
(10,681) 
SO, 265 
1 2 . 1 8 1 )  . .  
57,138 
3,999 
2,283 
18,714) 

( 4 9 , 4 9 7 )  
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EXHIBIT D 

(TRANSACTION FLOW CHARTS) 



WAXS - STAR 
Post Transaction Flow Chart 

AS 
Telecommunications, 
Inc. 

World Access, Inc. E3 

Communications, ~nc .  Communications, 

STI Merger Co. 
(wholly owned 



I World Access, Inc. 

STI Merger Co. 
( W h o l l y  O w n e d  
Subsidialy) 

WAXS - STAR 
Pre Transaction Flow Chart 

STAR Telecommunications, Inc. ' 
~. . .~ 

Wholly 

Subsidiaries 
Telecommunications, Communications, Inc. 


